

Bridges – Prioritizing Criteria and Measures

August 17, 2017

Definition: A bridge rehabilitation or replacement project located on a non-Freeway Principal Arterial or A-Minor Arterial functionally-classified roadway, consistent with the latest TAB-approved functional classification map. Bridge structures that have a separate span for each direction of travel can apply for both spans as part of one application.

The bridge must carry vehicular traffic, but may also include accommodations for other modes. Bridges that are exclusively for bicycle or pedestrian traffic must apply under one of the Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities application categories. Rail-only bridges are not eligible for funding. Completely new bridges, interchanges, or overpasses should apply in the Roadway Expansion application category.

Examples of Bridge Rehabilitation/Replacement Projects:

- Bridge rehabilitation of 20 or more feet with a sufficiency rating less than 80 and classified as structurally deficient or functionally obsolete.
- Bridge replacement of 20 or more feet with a sufficiency rating less than 50 and classified as structurally deficient or functionally obsolete.

Scoring:

Criteria and Measures	Points	% of Total Points
1. Role in the Regional Transportation System and Economy	195	19.58%
Measure A - Average Distance to <u>the</u> nearest parallel bridges	115 100	
Measure B - Connection to Total Jobs, and Manufacturing/Distribution Jobs, <u>and Post-Secondary Students</u>	30	
Measure C - Current daily heavy commercial traffic <u>Highway Truck Corridor Tiers</u>	35 65	
- Measure D – Freight project elements	15	
2. Usage	130	13.12%
Measure A - Current daily person throughput	100	
Measure B - Forecast 2040 average daily traffic volume	30	
3. Equity and Housing Performance	100	10.09%
Measure A - Connection to disadvantaged populations and project's benefits, impacts, and mitigation	30	
Measure B - Housing Performance Score	70	
4. Infrastructure Condition	400	40.36%
Measure A – Bridge Sufficiency Rating	300	
Measure B – Load-Posting	100	
5. Multimodal Elements and Existing Connections	100	10.09%
Measure A - Transit, bicycle, or pedestrian project elements and connections	100	
6. Risk Assessment	75	7.57%
Measure A - Risk Assessment Form	75	
Sub-Total	1,000	100%
7. Cost Effectiveness	100	9%

Measure A – Cost effectiveness (total project cost /total points awarded/ <u>total project cost</u>)	100
Total	1,100

1. Role in the Regional Transportation System and Economy (195 Points) – Tying regional policy (Thrive MSP2040) to the Regional Solicitation, this criterion measures the project’s ability to serve a transportation purpose within the regional transportation system and economy based on how well it fulfills its functional classification role, ~~serves heavy commercial traffic, and~~ connects to employment, post-secondary students, and manufacturing/distribution-related employment, and aligns with the Highway Truck Corridor Study.

A. **MEASURE:** Address how the project route fulfills its role in the regional transportation system by measuring the diversion to the nearest parallel crossing (must be an A-minor arterial or principal arterial) if the proposed project is closed. (100 points) The project must be located on a non-freeway principal arterial or an A-minor arterial.

RESPONSE:

- Distance from one end of proposed project to nearest parallel crossing (that is an A-minor arterial or principal arterial) and then back to the other side of the proposed project: _____
- Location of nearest parallel crossing: _____
- Explanation (Limit 2,800 characters; approximately 400 words): _____
- ~~Reference the “Roadway Area Definition” map generated at the beginning of the application process. Report the total area and project length, as depicted on the “Roadway Area Definition” map, to calculate the average distance between the project and the closest parallel “A” Minor Arterials or Principal Arterials on both sides of the project.~~

~~Upload the “Roadway Area Definition” map used for this measure.~~

SCORING GUIDANCE (115-100 Points)

The applicant with the furthest ~~average~~ distance from the closest parallel A-Minor Arterial or Principal Arterial bridge on ~~both sides~~ will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the project being scored had a distance of 8 miles and the top project was had ~~an average~~ distance of 10 miles, this applicant would receive $(8/10) * 115-100$ points or ~~92-80~~ points. ~~Metropolitan Council staff will provide average distance data for all projects to ensure consistency of methodology between applications.~~

B. **MEASURE:** Reference the “Regional Economy” map generated at the beginning of the application process. Report the employment, manufacturing/distribution-related employment, and post-secondary students enrolled within one mile, as depicted on the “Regional Economy” map.

Upload the “Regional Economy” map used for this measure.

RESPONSE (Data from the “Regional Economy” map):

- Existing Employment within 1 Mile: _____ (Maximum of 30 points)
- Existing Manufacturing/Distribution-Related Employment within 1 Mile: _____ (Maximum of 30 points)
- Existing Post-Secondary Students: _____ (Maximum of 18 points)

SCORING GUIDANCE (30 Points)

All Census block groups that are included within or intersect the buffer area around the project will be included.

The applicant with the highest existing total employment will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had 1,000 workers within one mile and the top project had 1,500 workers, this applicant would receive $(1,000/1,500)*30$ points or 20 points.

The applicant with the highest existing manufacturing/distribution-related employment will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points equal to the existing manufacturing/distribution-related employment within one mile of the project being scored divided by the project with the highest manufacturing/distribution-related employment within one mile multiplied by the maximum points available for the measure (20). For example, if the application being scored had 1,000 manufacturing/distribution-related workers within one mile and the top project had 1,500 manufacturing/distribution-related workers, this applicant would receive $(1,000/1,500)*30$ points or 20 points.

The applicant with the highest number of post-secondary students will receive 18 points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the 18 points. For example, if the application being scored had 1,000 students within one mile and the top project had 1,500 students, this applicant would receive $(1,000/1,500)*18$ points or 12 points.

The scorer will assess if the applicant would score highest with the total employment part of the measure, the manufacturing/distribution employment part of the measure, or the education part of the measure and give the applicant the highest of the three scores out of a maximum of 30 points.

Note: Due to the use of multiple sub-measures, two applicants will receive the full 30 points.

C. MEASURE: ~~Provide the current daily heavy commercial traffic at one location on the A-Minor Arterial or Non-Freeway Principal Arterial project length. It is required that an actual daily count is collected or available data from within the last three years is used (from the city, county or MnDOT). Heavy commercial traffic is defined as all trucks with at least two axles and six tires. This criterion~~ measure relies on the results on in the Highway Truck Corridor Study, which prioritized all roadways based on truck volume, truck percentage of total traffic, proximity to freight clusters, and proximity to regional freight terminals. (65 points)

Use the final study report for this measure:

<https://metro council.org/Transportation/Planning-2/Transit-Plans,-Studies-Reports/Highways-Roads/Truck-Freight-Corridor-Study.aspx>

RESPONSE (Select one for your project, based on the Highway Truck Corridor Study):

- The project is located on either a Tier 1, Tier 2, or Tier 3 corridor: (65 Points)
- The project is not located on a Tier 1, Tier 2, or Tier 3 corridor: (0 Points)

RESPONSE:

- Location: _____
- Current daily heavy commercial traffic volume: _____
- Date heavy commercial count taken: _____

SCORING GUIDANCE (365 Points)

~~The scorer will assign points based on which of the above scores applies. Note that multiple applicants can score the maximum point allotment. The applicant with the highest daily heavy commercial traffic at a location along the bridge will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had a heavy commercial volume of 750 vehicles and the top project had a heavy commercial volume of 1,000 vehicles, this applicant would receive $(750/1,000)*35$ points, or 26 points.~~

- C. ~~MEASURE: Discuss any freight elements that are included as part of the project and how they improve efficiency, security, or safety. (15 points)~~

~~Address how the proposed project safely integrates freight. Freight elements could be project elements such as upgrading a non ten-ton roadway to a ten-ton roadway, adding paved shoulders, wider shoulders, acceleration lanes, or longer turning lanes added specifically to accommodate freight movements.~~

~~RESPONSE (Limit 1,400 characters; approximately 200 words):~~

SCORING GUIDANCE (15 Points)

~~The project with the most comprehensive freight elements included as part of the project will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a share of the full points at the scorer's discretion.~~

2. Usage (130 Points) – This criterion quantifies the project’s potential impact by measuring the current daily person throughput and future vehicular traffic that will be served by the project. These roadway users directly benefit from the project improvements on the “A” Minor Arterial or Non-Freeway Principal Arterial.

A. **MEASURE:** Metropolitan Council staff will calculate the current daily person throughput at one location on the “A” Minor Arterial or Non-Freeway Principal Arterial bridge using the current average annual daily traffic (AADT) volume and average annual ridership. The applicant must identify the location along the project length and provide the current AADT volume from the MnDOT 50-series maps ~~and existing transit routes that travel on the road.~~ [Reference the Transit Map for transit routes along the project.](#) Ridership data will be provided by the Metropolitan Council staff, if public transit is currently provided on the project length.

- Current Daily Person Throughput = (current average annual daily traffic volume x 1.30 vehicle occupancy) + average annual daily transit ridership ~~(2015)~~2017)

RESPONSE:

- Location: _____
- Current AADT volume: _____
- Existing Transit Routes on the Project: _____

SCORING GUIDANCE (100 Points)

The applicant with highest current daily person throughput will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full. For example, if the application being scored had a daily person throughput of 1,000 vehicles and the top project had a daily person throughput of 1,500 vehicles, this applicant would receive $(1,000/1,500)*100$ points or 67 points.

B. **MEASURE:** Provide the forecast (2040) average daily traffic volume at the same location on the “A” Minor Arterial or Non-Freeway Principal Arterial bridge, as identified in the previous measure. The applicant may choose to use a county or city travel demand model based on the Metropolitan Council model to identify the forecast (2040) average daily traffic volume or have Metropolitan Council staff determine the forecast volume using the Metropolitan Council model and project location. Respond as appropriate to the use of one type of forecast model. [\(30 points\)](#)

RESPONSE:

- Use Metropolitan Council model to determine forecast (2040) ADT volume
- METC Staff-Forecast (2040) ADT volute

OR

RESPONSE:

- Approved county or city travel demand model to determine forecast (2040) ADT volume
- Forecast (2040) ADT volume : _____

SCORING GUIDANCE (30 Points)

The applicant with the highest forecast (2040) ADT volume will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had a daily forecast of 28,000 vehicles and the top project had a daily forecast of 32,000 vehicles, this applicant would receive $(28,000/32,000)*30$ points or 26 points.

3. Equity and Housing Performance (100 Points) – This criterion addresses the project’s positive and negative impacts to low-income populations, people of color, children, people with disabilities, and the elderly. The criterion also evaluates a community’s efforts to promote affordable housing.

- A. **MEASURE:** Reference the “Socio-Economic Conditions” map generated at the beginning of the application process. Identify the project’s location as it applies in the listed responses below. Describe the project’s positive benefits, and negative impacts, and mitigation for low-income populations; people of color; children, people with disabilities, and the elderly. Geographic proximity alone is not sufficient to receive the full points listed below. In order to receive the maximum points, the response should address the benefits, impacts, and mitigation for the populations listed.

Upload the “Socio-Economic Conditions” map used for this measure.

RESPONSE (Select one, based on the “Socio-Economic Conditions” map):

- Project located in Area of Concentrated Poverty with 50% or more of residents are people of color (ACP50): ~~(0 to 30 Points)~~ (up to 100% of maximum score)
- Project located in Area of Concentrated Poverty: ~~(0 to 24 Points)~~ (up to 80% of maximum score)
- Project’s census tracts are above the regional average for population in poverty or population of color: ~~(0 to 18 Points)~~ (up to 60% of maximum score)
- Project located in a census tract that is below the regional average for population in poverty or populations of color, or includes children, people with disabilities, or the elderly: ~~(0 to 12 Points)~~ (up to 40% of maximum score)

RESPONSE (Limit 2,800 characters; approximately 400 words):

SCORING GUIDANCE (30 Points)

Based on the “Socio-Economic Conditions” map’s output, the applicant will select the appropriate option from the above bullets. However, geographic proximity alone is not sufficient to receive full points. The applicant must fully describe the positive benefits and negative impacts (with mitigation to address the issue) for those identified groups. Each project will first be graded on a 10-point scale, not accounting for geography. Each score from the 10-point scale will then be adjusted to the appropriate geography. The project with the most positive benefits and appropriate mitigation for negative impacts will receive the full points relative to its maximum geographic sub-area defined above. Remaining projects will receive a share of the full points at the scorer’s discretion. This response is intended to be qualitative. Metropolitan Council staff will score this measure.

Note: Due to the geographic adjustment to scores, it is possible that the above process will result in no project receiving the maximum allotment of 30 points. In this case, the highest-scoring application for this measure will be adjusted to receive the full 30 points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had 10 points and the top project had 20 points, this applicant would receive $(10/20)*30$ points or 15 points.

- B. MEASURE: Metropolitan Council staff will award points to the project based on the 2015-2017 Housing Performance Score for the city or township in which the project is located. The score includes consideration of affordability and diversification, local initiatives to facilitate affordable workforce housing development or preservation, and density of residential development. A one-mile radius-buffer will be drawn around the project. If the radius-buffer enters more than one jurisdiction, the points will be awarded based on the proportionate population of the Census blocks in each jurisdiction that are all or partially located in the area within the one-mile radius-buffer. If a project is located in a city or township with no allocation of affordable housing need (either there is no forecasted household growth or the area does not have land to support sewered development), then the project will not be disadvantaged by this measure and the project's total score will be adjusted as a result. (70 Points)

RESPONSE (Affordable Housing Score completed by Metropolitan Council staff):

- City/Township: _____
- Population from the Regional Economy map within City/Township:

SCORING GUIDANCE (70 Points)

The applicant with the highest 2015-2017 Housing Performance Score will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had a Housing Performance Score of 55 and the top project had a Housing Performance Score of 90, this applicant would receive $(55/90)*70$ points or 43 points.

Note: Metropolitan Council staff will score this measure.

Projects will use the city Housing Performance Score based on the project location. A one-mile radius-buffer will be drawn around the project. If the radius-buffer enters more than one jurisdiction, the points will be awarded based on the proportionate population of the Census blocks in each jurisdiction that are all or partially located in the area within the one-mile radius-buffer.

If a project is located in a city or township with no allocation of affordable housing need (either there is no forecasted household growth or the area does not have land to support sewered development), then the project will not be disadvantaged by this measure and the project's total score will be adjusted as a result.

If this is the case, then the total points possible in the application will be 930 instead of 1,000. The total points awarded through the rest of the application (900 as a hypothetical example) will be divided by 930, then multiplied by 1,000. Therefore, a project scoring 900 out of 930, will equate to 968 points on a 1,000-point scale.

If a portion of the project is located in a city with an affordable housing allocation and the other portion is located in a township with no affordable housing allocation, then a combination of the weighted average and no affordable housing methodologies should be used. This will result in a total score that will be somewhere between 930 and 1,000; then the score will need to be adjusted to fit a 1,000-point scale.

4. Infrastructure Condition (400 Points) – This criterion will assess the age and condition of the bridge facility being improved. Bridge improvement investments should focus on the higher needs of unsafe facilities. If there are two separate spans, then the applicant should take the average bridge sufficiency rating of the two spans.

- A. **MEASURE:** Identify the bridge sufficiency rating, from the most recent market structure inventory report. [Attach the report to the application.](#)

RESPONSE:

- Bridge Sufficiency Rating: _____

SCORING GUIDANCE (300 Points)

The applicant with the lowest bridge sufficiency rating will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points equal to the rating for the project with the lowest bridge sufficiency rating divided by the project being scored multiplied by the maximum points available for the measure (300). For example, if the top project had a bridge sufficiency rating of 35 and the application being scored had a score of 55, this applicant would receive $(35/55) * 300$ points or 191 points.

- B. **MEASURE:** Identify whether the bridge is posted for load restrictions.

RESPONSE (Check box if the bridge is load-posted):

- Load-Posted (Check box if the bride is load-posted):

SCORING GUIDANCE (100 Points)

Applicants will receive the points shown depending on whether the bridge is load-posted. The applicant can only score 0 or 100 points for this measure.

5. Multimodal Elements and Connections (100 Points) – This criterion measures how the project improves the travel experience, safety, and security for other modes of transportation and addresses the safe integration of these modes. The *Transportation Policy Plan* requires that explicit consideration of all users of the transportation system be considered in the planning and scoping phase of roadway projects.

- A. **MEASURE:** Discuss any bicycle, pedestrian, or transit elements that are included as part of the project and how they improve the travel experience, safety, and security for users of these modes. Applicants should make sure that new multimodal elements described in the response are accounted for as part of the cost estimate form earlier in the application. Applicants may want to reference how the proposed multimodal improvements positively affect identified alignments in the Regional Bicycle Transportation Network (RBTN), if applicable. (100 points)

Also, describe the existing bicycle, pedestrian, and transit connections. Furthermore, address how the proposed project safely integrates all modes of transportation (i.e., vehicles, bicyclists, transit, and pedestrians) and, if applicable, supports planned transitway stations. Applicants should note if there is no transit service in the project area and identify supporting studies or plans that address why a mode may not be incorporated in the project (e.g., a bicycle system plan that locates bikeway facilities on a lower-volume parallel route).

RESPONSE (Limit 2,800 characters; approximately 400 words):

SCORING GUIDANCE (100 Points)

The project with the most comprehensive multimodal elements included as part of the project will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a share of the full points at the scorer's discretion. The project score will be based on the quality of the improvements, as opposed to being based solely on the number of modes addressed.

Scorers should make sure that new multimodal elements described in the response are accounted for on the cost estimate form earlier in the application.

6. Risk Assessment (75 Points) – This criterion measures the number of risks associated with successfully building the project. High-risk applications increase the likelihood that projects will withdraw at a later date. ~~and the steps already completed in the project development process.~~ These steps are outlined in the checklist in the required Risk Assessment.

- A. MEASURE: Applications involving construction must complete the Risk Assessment. This checklist includes activities completed to-date, as well as an assessment of risks (e.g., right-of-way acquisition, proximity to historic properties, etc.).

RESPONSE (Complete Risk Assessment):

SCORING GUIDANCE (75 Points)

The applicant with the most points on the Risk Assessment (more points equate to less project risk) will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had 40 points and the top project had 70 points, this applicant would receive $(40/70)*75$ points or 43 points.

7. Cost Effectiveness (100 Points) – This criterion will assess the project’s cost effectiveness based on the TAB-eligible project cost (not including noise walls) and total points awarded in the previous six criteria.

A. MEASURE: This measure will calculate the cost effectiveness of the project. Metropolitan Council staff will divide the number of points awarded in the previous criteria by the TAB-eligible project cost (not including noise walls) ~~by the total number of points awarded in the previous criteria.~~

- Cost Effectiveness = ~~total TAB-eligible project cost (not including noise walls)~~/total number of points awarded in previous criteria/total TAB-eligible project cost (not including noise walls)

RESPONSE (Points Awarded and Cost Effectiveness will be Automatically Calculated):

- Total Project Cost (entered in Project Cost Form): _____

SCORING GUIDANCE (100 Points)

~~The applicant with the lowest dollar value per point earned in the application (i.e., the benefits) will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the top project had 35,000 and the application being scored had 70,000, this applicant would receive (35,000/70,000) *100 points for 50 points.~~ The applicant with the most points (i.e., the benefits) per dollar will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the top project received .0005 points per dollar and the application being scored received .00025 points per dollar, this applicant would receive (.00025/.0005)*100 points or 50 points.

TOTAL: 1,100 POINTS

Roadway System Traffic Management Technologies – Prioritizing Criteria and Measures

August 17, 2017

Definition: An Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) or similar projects that primarily benefits roadway users. Roadway System Traffic Management Technology projects can include project elements along a single corridor, a continuous route (could be more than one multiple roadway corridors,) or within a defined specific geographic area such as a downtown area. To be eligible, system management projects must make improvements to at least one A-Minor Arterial or non-freeway Principal Arterial as part of the project. Projects that are more transit-focused must apply in the Transit System Modernization application category.

Examples of Roadway System Traffic Management Technology Projects:

- Flashing yellow arrow traffic signals
- Traffic signal retiming projects
- Integrated corridor signal coordination
- Traffic signal control system upgrades
- New/replacement detectors
- Passive detectors for bicyclists and pedestrians
- New/replacement traffic mgmt. centers
- New/replacement fiber optic cables used for traffic control, etc. communication
- New/replacement CCTV cameras
- New/replacement variable message signs & other info improvements
- Incident management coordination

Scoring:

Criteria and Measures	Points	% of Total Points
1. Role in the Regional Transportation System and Economy	125	12.5 %
Measure A - Average distance to nearest parallel roadways Functional classification of project	55	
Measure B - Connection to Total Jobs and Manufacturing/Distribution Jobs Highway Truck Corridor Study Tiers	30	
Measure C - Integration within existing traffic management systems	70	
Measure D - Freight project elements Coordination with other agencies	50	
2. Usage	125	12.5 %
Measure A - Current daily person throughput	85	
Measure B - Forecast 2040 average daily traffic volume	40	
3. Equity and Housing Performance	100	10 %
Measure A - Connection to disadvantaged populations and project's benefits	30	
Measure B - Housing Performance Score	70	
4. Infrastructure Age	75	7.5 %
Measure A - Date of construction Upgrades to obsolete equipment	75	
5. Congestion Reduction/Air Quality	200	20 %
Measure A - Vehicle delay reduced Congested roadway (V/C Ratio)	150	
Measure B - Kg of emissions reduced Emissions and congestion benefits of project	50	
6. Safety	200	20 %
Measure A - Crashes reduced	200	
Measure B - Safety issues in project area	50	

Roadway System Management

Criteria and Measures	Points	% of Total Points
7. Multimodal Elements and Existing Connections	100 50	10 5%
Measure A - Transit, bicycle, or pedestrian project elements and connections	10050	
8. Risk Assessment	75	7.5 7%
Measure A- Risk Assessment Form	75	
Sub Total	1,000	100%
9. Cost Effectiveness	100	9 %
Measure A – Cost effectiveness (total project cost /total points awarded/ <u>total project cost</u>)	100	
Total	1,100	

1. Role in the Regional Transportation System and Economy (125-225 Points) – Tying regional policy (Thrive MSP2040) to the Regional Solicitation, this criterion measures the project’s ability to serve a transportation purpose within the regional transportation system and economy based on how well it fulfills its functional classification role, ~~serves heavy commercial traffic~~ aligns with the Highway Truck Corridor Study, and ~~connects to employment, students, and manufacturing/distribution-related employment~~ integrates with existing traffic management systems, and provides coordination across agencies. The project must be located on at least one ~~Non-Freeway~~ Principal Arterial or A-Minor Arterial.

- A. ~~MEASURE: Address how the project route fulfills its role in the regional transportation system. The project must be located on at least one Non-Freeway Principal Arterial or “A” Minor Arterial. Reference the functional classification(s) that the project would serve. Investment in a higher functionally-classified roadway (i.e., the principal arterial system) serves a more regional purpose and will result in more points.~~

~~Upload the “Roadway Area Definition” map used for this measure.~~

~~RESPONSE (Calculation Select one):~~

- ~~• The majority of the project funds will be invested on the principal arterial system: (450 points)~~
- ~~• The majority of the project funds will be invested on the A-minor arterial system: (205 points)~~
- ~~• The majority of the project funds will be invested on the collector or local system with some investment either on the principal arterial or A-minor arterial system: (0 points)~~

SCORING GUIDANCE (50 Points)

The scorer will assign points based on which of the above scores applies. Note that multiple applicants are able to score the maximum point allotment. If no applicant scores 50 points, the 25-point projects will be adjusted to 50 points, while the zero-point projects will remain at zero. ~~SCORING GUIDANCE (55 Points)~~

~~The applicant with the furthest average distance from the closest parallel A-Minor Arterials or Principal Arterials on both sides will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the project being scored had a distance of 8 miles and the top project was had an average distance of 10 miles, this applicant would receive $(8/10) * 55$ points or 44 points. Metropolitan Council staff will provide average distance data for all projects to ensure consistency of methodology between applications.~~

- A. ~~B. MEASURE: Reference “Regional Economy” map generated at the beginning of the application process. Report the employment and manufacturing/distribution-related employment, and post-secondary students enrolled within one mile, as depicted on the “Regional Economy” map. (30 Points)~~ This criterion relies on the results on the Highway Truck Corridor Study, which prioritized all roadways based on truck volume, truck percentage of total traffic, proximity to freight clusters, and proximity to regional freight terminals. (65 points)

Use the final study report for this measure:

<https://metrocouncil.org/Transportation/Planning-2/Transit-Plans,-Studies-Reports/Highways-Roads/Truck-Freight-Corridor-Study.aspx>

RESPONSE (Select one for your project, based on the Highway Truck Corridor Study):

- The majority of the project funds will be invested on either a Tier 1, Tier 2, or Tier 3 corridor: (65 Points)
- A majority of the project funds will NOT be invested on a Tier 1, Tier 2, or Tier 3 corridor, but some funds will be invested on these corridors: (30 Points)
- No project funds will be invested on a Tier 1, Tier 2, or Tier 3 corridor: (0 Points)

SCORING GUIDANCE (50 Points)

The scorer will assign points based on which of the above scores applies. Note that multiple applicants can score the maximum point allotment. If no applicant scores 65 points, the 30-point projects will be adjusted to 65 points, while the zero-point projects will remain at zero.~~SCORING GUIDANCE (30 Points)
All Census block groups that are included within or intersect the buffer area around the project will be included.~~

~~The applicant with the highest existing total employment will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had 1,000 workers within one mile and the top project had 1,500 workers, this applicant would receive $(1,000/1,500)*30$ points or 20 points.~~

~~The applicant with the highest existing manufacturing/distribution-related employment will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points equal to the existing manufacturing/distribution-related employment within one mile of the project being scored divided by the project with the highest manufacturing/distribution-related employment within one mile multiplied by the maximum points available for the measure. For example, if the application being scored had 1,000 manufacturing/distribution-related workers within one mile and the top project had 1,500 manufacturing/distribution-related workers, this applicant would receive $(1,000/1,500)*30$ points or 20 points.~~

~~The applicant with the highest number of students will receive 18 points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the 18 points. For example, if the application being scored had 1,000 students within one mile and the top project had 1,500 students, this applicant would receive $(1,000/1,500)*18$ points or 12 points.~~

~~The scorer will assess if the applicant would score highest with the total employment part of the measure, the manufacturing/distribution employment part of the measure, or the education part of the measure and give the applicant the highest of the three scores out of a maximum of 30 points.~~

~~Note: Due to the use of multiple sub-measures, two applicants will receive the full 30 points.~~

Roadway System Management

C. MEASURE: Provide the current daily heavy commercial traffic at one location along the A-Minor Arterial or Non-Freeway Principal Arterial project length. It is required that an actual count is collected or that available data from within the last three years is used (from the city, county or MnDOT). Heavy commercial traffic is defined as all trucks with at least two axles and six tires. Discuss how the proposed project integrates and/or builds on existing traffic management infrastructure (examples of systems include traffic signal systems, freeway management systems, and incident management systems). (65 Points)

RESPONSE (Limit 2,800 characters; approximately 400 words):

RESPONSE:

- Location: _____
- Current daily heavy commercial traffic volume: _____
- Date(s) heavy commercial count taken: _____

SCORING GUIDANCE (30-65 Points)

The applicant with the highest daily heavy commercial traffic at a location along the project length will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had a heavy commercial volume of 750 vehicles and the top project had a heavy commercial volume of 1,000 vehicles, this applicant would receive $(750/1,000) * 30$ points, or 23 points. The applicant will describe how the project would build on other infrastructure and management systems. Prioritizing projects that complement existing infrastructure and management methods, the scorer will award the full share of points to the project that best builds on other infrastructure and management systems. Remaining projects will receive a share of the full points at the scorer's discretion. This response is intended to be qualitative.

D. MEASURE: Discuss any freight elements that are included as part of the project and how they improve efficiency, security, or safety. (10 points) Address how the proposed project safely integrates freight. Freight elements could be project elements such as upgrading a non-ten-ton roadway to a ten-ton roadway, adding paved shoulders, wider shoulders, acceleration lanes, or longer turning lanes added specifically to accommodate freight movements. Demonstrate how the project provides or enhances coordination among operational and management systems and/or jurisdictions. (50 points)

RESPONSE (Limit 21,840 characters; approximately 4200 words):

SCORING GUIDANCE (10-450 Points)

The project that best provides or enhances coordination among operational and management systems and/or jurisdictions with the most comprehensive freight elements included as part of the project will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a share of the full points at the scorer's discretion.

2. Usage (125-1205 Points) – This criterion quantifies the project’s potential impact by measuring the current daily person throughput and future vehicular traffic that will be served by the project. These roadway users directly benefit from the project improvements.

A. **MEASURE:** Metropolitan Council staff will calculate the current daily person throughput at one location along the A-minor arterial or non-freeway principal arterial project length using the current average annual daily traffic (AADT) volume and average ~~annual~~ daily transit ridership. If more than one corridor or location is included in the project, then the applicant should select the corridor where the most investment is being made with the project. The applicant must identify the location along the project length and provide the current AADT volume from the MnDOT 50-series maps ~~and existing transit routes that travel on the road.~~ Reference the Transit Map for transit routes along the project. Ridership data will be provided by the Metropolitan Council staff, if public transit is currently provided on the project length. (805 points)

- Current Daily Person Throughput = (current average annual daily traffic volume x 1.30 vehicle occupancy) + average annual daily transit ridership (20152017)

RESPONSE:

- Location: _____
- Current AADT volume: _____
- Existing ~~Transit~~ transit Routes ~~routes on the Project~~ at the location noted above: _____

SCORING GUIDANCE (85805 Points)

The project with highest current daily person throughput will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had a daily person throughput of 1,000 vehicles and the top project had a daily person throughput of 1,500 vehicles, this applicant would receive $(1,000/1,500) * 85805$ points or 546 points.

B. **MEASURE:** Provide the forecast (2040) average daily traffic volume at the same location along the A-minor arterial or non-freeway principal arterial project length, as identified in the previous measure. The applicant may choose to use a county or city travel demand model based on the Metropolitan Council model to identify the forecast (2040) average daily traffic volume or have Metropolitan Council staff determine the forecast volume using the Metropolitan Council model and project location. Respond as appropriate to the use of one type of forecast model. (40 points)

RESPONSE:

- Use Metropolitan Council model to determine forecast (2040) ADT volume
- If checked, METC Staff will provide Forecast (2040) ADT volume

OR

RESPONSE:

- Approved county or city travel demand model to determine forecast (2040) ADT volume
- Forecast (2040) ADT volume: _____

SCORING GUIDANCE (40 Points)

Roadway System Management

The applicant with the highest forecast (2040) ADT volume will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had a daily forecast of 28,000 vehicles and the top project had a daily forecast of 32,000 vehicles, this applicant would receive $(28,000/32,000)*40$ points or 35 points.

3. Equity and Housing Performance (100 Points) – This criterion addresses the project’s positive and negative impacts to low-income populations, people of color, children, people with disabilities, and the elderly. The criterion also evaluates a community’s efforts to promote affordable housing.

- A. **MEASURE:** Reference the “Socio-Economic Conditions” map generated at the beginning of the application process. Identify the project’s location as it applies in the listed responses below. Describe the project’s positive benefits, and negative impacts, and mitigation for low-income populations; people of color; children, people with disabilities, and the elderly. Geographic proximity alone is not sufficient to receive the full points listed below. In order to receive the maximum points, the response should address the benefits, impacts, and mitigation for the populations listed.

Upload the “Socio-Economic Conditions” map used for this measure.

RESPONSE (Select one, based on the “Socio-Economic Conditions” map):

- Project located in Area of Concentrated Poverty with 50% or more of residents are people of color (ACP50): ~~(0 to 30 Points)~~ (up to 100% of maximum score)
- Project located in Area of Concentrated Poverty: ~~(0 to 24 Points)~~ (up to 80% of maximum score)
- Project’s census tracts are above the regional average for population in poverty or population of color: ~~(0 to 18 Points)~~ (up to 60% of maximum score)
- Project located in a census tract that is below the regional average for population in poverty or populations of color, or includes children, people with disabilities, or the elderly: ~~(0 to 12 Points)~~ (up to 40% of maximum score)

RESPONSE (Limit 2,800 characters; approximately 400 words):

SCORING GUIDANCE (30 Points)

Based on the “Socio-Economic Conditions” map’s output, the applicant will select the appropriate option from the above bullets. However, geographic proximity alone is not sufficient to receive full points. The applicant must fully describe the positive benefits and negative impacts (with mitigation to address the issue) for those identified groups. Each project will first be graded on a 10-point scale, not accounting for geography. Each score from the 10-point scale will then be adjusted to the appropriate geography. The project with the most positive benefits and appropriate mitigation for negative impacts will receive the full points relative to its maximum geographic sub-area defined above. Remaining projects will receive a share of the full points at the scorer’s discretion. This response is intended to be qualitative. Metropolitan Council staff will score this measure.

Note: Due to the geographic adjustment to scores, it is possible that the above process will result in no project receiving the maximum allotment of 30 points. In this case, the highest-scoring application for this measure will be adjusted to receive the full 30 points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had 10 points and the top project had 20 points, this applicant would receive $(10/20) * 30$ points or 15 points.

Roadway System Management

- B. **MEASURE:** Metropolitan Council staff will award points to the project based on the ~~2015-2017~~ Housing Performance Score for the city or township in which the project is located. The score includes consideration of affordability and diversification, local initiatives to facilitate affordable workforce housing development or preservation, and density of residential development. If the project is in more than one jurisdiction, the points will be awarded based on a weighted average using the ~~length of the project~~ percent of total funds to be spent in each jurisdiction.

For stand-alone intersection, bridge, underpass, and interchange projects, a one-mile-radius buffer will be drawn around the project. If the radius-buffer enters more than one jurisdiction, the points will be awarded based on the proportionate population of the Census blocks in each jurisdiction that are all or partially located in the area within the one-mile-radius buffer.

If a project is located in a city or township with no allocation of affordable housing need (either there is no forecasted household growth or the area does not have land to support sewered development), then the project will not be disadvantaged by this measure and the project's total score will be adjusted as a result.

RESPONSE (Affordable Housing Score completed by Metropolitan Council staff):

- City/Township: _____
- ~~Length of Segment~~ Percent of total funds to be spend within City/Township: _____

SCORING GUIDANCE (70 Points)

The applicant with the highest ~~2015-2017~~ Housing Performance Score will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had a Housing Performance Score of 55 and the top project had a Housing Performance Score of 90, this applicant would receive $(55/90)*70$ points or 43 points.

Note: Metropolitan Council staff will score this measure.

Projects will use the city Housing Performance Score based on the project location. If a project is located in more than one jurisdiction, the points will be awarded based on a weighted average of the city or township scores for the project location based on the length of the project in each jurisdiction. For stand-alone roadway (intersection, bridge, underpass, and interchange) projects, a one-mile radius-buffer will be drawn around the project. If the radius-buffer enters more than one jurisdiction, the points will be awarded based on the proportionate population of the Census blocks in each jurisdiction that are all or partially located in the area within the one-mile radius-buffer.

If a project is located in a city or township with no allocation of affordable housing need (either there is no forecasted household growth or the area does not have land to support sewered development), then the project will not be disadvantaged by this measure and the project's total score will be adjusted as a result.

If this is the case, then the total points possible in the application will be 930 instead of 1,000. The total points awarded through the rest of the application (900 as a hypothetical example) will be divided by 930, then multiplied by 1,000. Therefore, a project scoring 900 out of 930, will equate to 968 points on a 1,000-point scale.

If a portion of the project is located in a city with an affordable housing allocation and the other portion is located in a township with no affordable housing allocation, then a combination of the weighted average and no affordable housing methodologies should be used. This will result in a total score that will be somewhere between 930 and 1,000; then the score will need to be adjusted to fit a 1,000-point scale.

4. Infrastructure Age (75 Points) – This criterion will assess the ~~age of the infrastructure elements being improved. Roadway system management investments should focus on improving and replacing existing equipment that is beyond its useful life~~ degree to which functionally obsolete infrastructure elements are being replaced and improved.

- A. **MEASURE:** ~~Identify~~ Describe how various ~~type(s) and age(s) of ITS, signal/control, and/or communication~~ equipment will be improved or replaced as part of this project relative to its age and whether it is functionally obsolete, ~~as reflected in the project cost estimate.~~

RESPONSE:

- ~~Equipment to be improved:~~ _____
- ~~Date of equipment installation (year):~~ _____

RESPONSE (Limit 2,800 characters; approximately 400 words):

SCORING GUIDANCE (75 Points)

The project that best provides for stewardship of public funds and resource by replacing functionally obsolete equipment and finding cost-effective solutions to upgrade viable equipment will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a share of the full points at the scorer's discretion. ~~All applicants replacing equipment past the total useful life, as listed below, will receive full points. Projects replacing more than one type or age of equipment should be scored based on the average remaining useful life. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points equal to the total useful life minus the remaining useful life for the project being scored divided by the total useful life.~~

~~If there are no projects at or past the useful life of the equipment, the applicant with shortest remaining useful life will receive full points, and remaining projects will receive a proportionate share. For example, if the oldest project was installed 18 years ago (traffic signal) and the application being scored was installed 14 years ago, this applicant would receive $(14/18)*75$ points, or 58 points.~~

Equipment Useful Life Values

- ~~ITS Equipment: 10 years~~
- ~~Traffic Signals/Control Equipment: 20 years~~
- ~~Communication Equipment: 10 years~~

5. Congestion Reduction/Air Quality (200 Points) – This criterion measures the project’s ability to ~~reduce congestion. In addition, it will address its ability to improve congested intersections operating at unacceptable levels of service during peak hour conditions.~~ make improvements in congested corridors. The project will also be measured based on its ability to reduce emissions.

A. **MEASURE:** Conduct a volume to capacity (V/C) ratio analysis at ~~one or more of the intersections being located~~ location that will be improved by the project. If more than one corridor or location is included in the project, then the applicant should select the corridor where the most investment is being made with the project. The applicant must identify the location and provide the current average annual daily traffic (AADT) volume from the MnDOT 50-series maps. (150 Points)

Non-Freeway Volume/Capacity Table

Design Capacity

The assumed maximum number of vehicles per lane which pass any given point in an hour on an average day during normal operating conditions. For the purposes of responding to criteria in this solicitation packet, the following capacities shall be used:

- Expressway through lane - 800 vehicles per hour;
- Arterial through lane - 600 vehicles per hour;
- Left-turn lane - 300 vehicles per hour;
- Right-turn lane - 200 vehicles per hour;
- Dedicated bike lane or joint use trail - 60 vehicles per hour.

~~using existing turning movement counts (collected within the last three years) in the a.m. or p.m. peak hour and the Synchro or HCM software. The applicant must show the current total peak hour V/C ratio delay at one or more intersections (or rail crossings) and the reduction in total peak hour intersection delay V/C ratio at these intersections (or rail crossings), in seconds, due to the project. If more than one intersection (or rail crossing) is examined, then the V/C ratio delay reduced by each intersection can be added together to determine the project’s total reduction total.~~

- ~~• For roadway projects that include a railroad crossing, the applicant should conduct fieldwork during either the a.m. or p.m. peak hour to determine the total peak hour delay reduced by the project reduction resulting from the project. Applicants can also add together intersection delay reduced and railroad delay reduced, if they both will be improved by the project.~~

~~The applicant should include the appropriate Synchro or HCM full reports (including the Timing Page Report) that support the improvement in total peak hour delay and should conduct the analysis using the following:~~

- ~~• Under the network settings, all defaults should be used for lanes, volumes, phases and simulation~~
- ~~• Use Synchro’s automatic optimization to determine cycle, offset and splits (for traffic signals)~~

Roadway System Management

- ~~Project improvements assumed in the build condition should be reflected in the total project cost, such as additional through or turn lanes and protective left-turn phasing~~
- ~~Roadway lengths for intersection approaches must be the same length for before and after scenarios~~

~~Total Peak Hour Delay Reduced (Seconds) = Total Peak Hour Delay/Vehicle x Vehicles Per Hour~~

RESPONSE (Calculation):

- Location: _____
- Current AADT volume: _____
- Capacity: _____
- Volume/Capacity Ratio: _____
- ~~Total Peak Hour Delay/Vehicle without the Project (Seconds/Vehicle): _____~~
- ~~Total Peak Hour Delay/Vehicle with the Project (Seconds/Vehicle): _____~~
- ~~Total Peak Hour Delay/Vehicle Reduced by the Project (Seconds/Vehicle): _____~~
- ~~Volume (Vehicles Per Hour): _____~~
- ~~Total Peak Hour Delay Reduced by the Project (Seconds): _____~~

SCORING GUIDANCE (150 Points)

The applicant with the highest V/C ratio ~~most peak-hour vehicle delay reduced by the project improvement~~ will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the points. For example, if the application being scored had a V/C ratio of 0.50 ~~reduced delay by 5,000.8 seconds~~ and the top project ~~reduced delay by 25,000.01 seconds~~ had a V/C ratio of 1.00, this applicant would receive $(5,000.50/25,001.00) * 150$ points, or 30.75 points.

~~A. MEASURE: Using the Synchro or HCM analysis completed in the previous measure, identify the total peak hour emissions reduction in kilograms (CO, NO_x, VOC) due to the project. The applicant should include the appropriate Synchro or full HCM reports (including the Timing Page Report) that support the improvement in total peak hour emissions. If more than one intersection is examined, then the emissions reduced by each intersection can be added together to determine the total emissions reduced by the project.~~

- ~~Total Peak Hour Emissions Reduced (Kilograms) = Total Peak Hour Emissions Reduced per Vehicle x Vehicles Per Hour~~

~~If more than one intersection is examined, the response is a total of all emissions reduced.~~

~~Respond to one of the following sections, depending on project type:~~

- ~~1. Roadway projects that do not include new roadway segments or railroad grade-separation elements~~
- ~~2. Roadway projects that are constructing new roadway segments, but do not include railroad grade-separation elements (for Roadway Expansion applications only)~~
- ~~3. Roadway projects that include railroad grade-separation elements~~

RESPONSE (Calculation):

Roadway System Management

- ~~Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions/Vehicle without the Project (Kilograms): _____~~
 - ~~Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions/Vehicle with the Project (Kilograms): _____~~
 - ~~Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions Reduced/Vehicle by the Project (Kilograms): _____~~
 - ~~Volume (Vehicles Per Hour): _____~~
- B. ~~Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions Reduced by the Project (Kilograms): _____~~
Discuss how the project will reduce emissions and congestion. Projects on roadways that provide relief to congested, parallel principal arterial roadways may want to reference the current MnDOT Metro Freeway Congestion Report and discuss the systemwide emissions and congestion impact of the proposed improvements.

SCORING GUIDANCE (50 Points)

The project that is most likely to reduce emissions and congestion will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a share of the full points at the scorer's discretion.~~The applicant with the most kilograms reduced by the project improvement will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full. For example, if the application being scored reduced emissions by 3 kilograms and the top project reduced emissions by 5 kilograms, this applicant would receive (3/5)*50 points or 30 points.~~

6. Safety (200-150 Points) – This criterion addresses the project’s ability to correct deficiencies and improve the overall safety of an existing or future roadway facility. It will assess the project’s monetized safety benefits.

- A. MEASURE: Calculate the reduction in the total number of crashes due to improvements on the “A” Minor Arterial or Non-Freeway Principal Arterial made by the project. The applicant must base the estimate of crash reduction on the methodology consistent with the latest MnDOT Metro District Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) application. Applicants should focus on the crash analysis for reactive projects ~~starting on page 7 through page 11, in addition to Appendix A, E, and F.~~

Crash data must be obtained for the project length using the MnDOT TIS system average for calendar years ~~2013-2015~~ through ~~2015~~2017. Crash data should include all crash types and severity, including pedestrian and bicycle crashes.

Applicants should request crash data from MnDOT as early as possible. The applicant must then attach a listing of the crashes reduced and the HSIP Benefit/Cost (B/C) worksheet that identifies the resulting benefit associated with the project. As part of the response, please detail and attach the crash modification factor(s) used from FHWA’s Crash Modification Factors Clearinghouse: <http://www.cmfclearinghouse.org/>. This measure requests the monetized safety benefit of the project. The cost of the project is scored in the Cost Effectiveness criterion.

RESPONSE (Calculation):

- Crash Modification Factors Used: _____
- Rationale for Crash Modifications Selected (Limit 1,400 characters; approximately 200 words): _____
- Project Benefit (\$) from B/C ratio–: _____
- Explanation of Methodology: _____

SCORING GUIDANCE (150 Points)

The applicant with the highest dollar value of benefits will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had safety benefits of \$11,000,000 and the top project had safety benefits of \$16,000,000, this applicant would receive $(11,000,000/16,000,000)*150$ points or ~~103~~34 points.

- B. MEASURE: Discuss how the project will improve safety issues in the project area. As part of the response, the applicant may want to reference the project relative to County Highway Safety Plan or similar planning documents and what the project will specifically do to improve the safety issue.

RESPONSE (Limit 2,800 characters; approximately 400 words):

SCORING GUIDANCE (100 Points)

Roadway System Management

The project that will provide the most safety benefits and alleviate identified safety concerns will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a share of the full points at the scorer's discretion.

7. Multimodal Elements and Existing Connections (100-50 Points) – This criterion measures how the project improves the travel experience, safety, and security for other modes of transportation, and addresses the safe integration of these modes. The *Transportation Policy Plan* requires that explicit consideration of all users of the transportation system be considered in the planning and scoping phase of roadway projects.

- A. ***MEASURE:*** Discuss any bicycle, pedestrian, or transit elements that are included as part of the project and how they improve the travel experience, safety, and security for users of these modes. Applicants should make sure that new multimodal elements described in the response are accounted for as part of the cost estimate form earlier in the application. Applicants may want to reference how the proposed multimodal improvements positively affect identified alignments in the Regional Bicycle Transportation Network (RBTN), if applicable. (100-50 points)

Also, describe the existing bicycle, pedestrian, and transit connections. Furthermore, address how the proposed project safely integrates all modes of transportation (i.e., vehicles, bicyclists, transit, and pedestrians) and, if applicable, supports planned transitway stations. Applicants should note if there is no transit service in the project area and identify supporting studies or plans that address why a mode may not be incorporated in the project (e.g., a bicycle system plan that locates bikeway facilities on a lower-volume parallel route).

RESPONSE (Limit 2, 800 characters; approximately 400 words) :

SCORING GUIDANCE (100-50 Points)

The project with the most comprehensive multimodal elements included as part of the project will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a share of the full points at the scorer's discretion. The project score will be based on the quality of the improvements, as opposed to being based solely on the number of modes addressed.

Scorers should make sure that new multimodal elements described in the response are accounted for on the cost estimate form earlier in the application.

8. Risk Assessment (75 Points) – This criterion measures the number of risks associated with successfully building the project. High-risk applications increase the likelihood that projects will withdraw at a later date. If this happens, the region is forced to reallocate the federal funds in a short amount of time or return them to the Federal Highway Administration ~~and the steps already completed in the project development process.~~ These steps are outlined in the checklist in the required Risk Assessment.

- A. ***MEASURE***: Applications involving construction must complete the Risk Assessment. This checklist includes activities completed to-date, as well as an assessment of risks (e.g., right-of-way acquisition, proximity to historic properties, etc.).

RESPONSE (Complete Risk Assessment):

SCORING GUIDANCE (75 Points)

The applicant with the most points on the Risk Assessment (more points equate to less project risk) will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had 40 points and the top project had 70 points, this applicant would receive $(40/70)*75$ points or 43 points.

9. Cost Effectiveness (100 Points) – This criterion will assess the project’s cost effectiveness based on the total TAB-eligible project cost (not including noise walls) and total points awarded in the previous 8 criteria.

A. *MEASURE: Calculate the cost effectiveness of the project.* Metropolitan Council staff will divide the number of points awarded in the previous criteria by the TAB-eligible project cost (not including noise walls) ~~by the total number of points awarded in the previous criteria.~~

- Cost effectiveness = ~~total TAB-eligible project cost (not including noise walls)~~/total number of points awarded in previous criteria/total TAB-eligible project cost (not including noise walls)

RESPONSE (This measure will be calculated after the scores for the other measures are tabulated by the Scoring Committee):

- Total Project Cost (entered in Project Cost Form): _____

SCORING GUIDANCE (100 Points)

~~The applicant with the lowest dollar value per point earned in the application (i.e., the benefits) will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the top project had 35,000 and the application being scored had 70,000, this applicant would receive (35,000/70,000) *100 points for 50 points.~~
The applicant with the most points (i.e., the benefits) per dollar will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the top project received .0005 points per dollar and the application being scored received .00025 points per dollar, this applicant would receive (.00025/.0005)*100 points or 50 points.

TOTAL: 1,100 POINTS

Roadway Reconstruction/Modernization and Spot Mobility– Prioritizing Criteria and Measures

August 17, 2017

Definition: A roadway project that does not add thru-lane capacity, but reconstructs, reclaims, or modernizes, or adds new spot mobility elements (e.g., new turn lanes, traffic signal, or roundabout)the facility. Routine maintenance including mill and overlay projects are not eligible. Projects must be located on a non-freeway principal arterial or A-minor arterial functionally-classified roadway, consistent with the latest TAB approved functional classification map.

Examples of Roadway Reconstruction/Modernization and Spot Mobility Projects:

- Intersection improvements or alternative intersections such as unsignalized or signalized reduced conflict intersections.
- Interchange reconstructions that do not involve new ramp movements or added thru lanes
- Turn lanes (not continuous)
- Two-lane to three-lane conversions
- Four-lane to three-lane conversions
- Roundabouts
- Addition or replacement of traffic signals
- Shoulder improvements
- Strengthening a non-10-ton roadway
- Raised medians, frontage roads, access modifications, or other access management
- Roadway improvements that add multimodal elements
- New alignments that replace an existing alignment and do not expand the number of lanes

Scoring:

Criteria and Measures	Points	% of Total Points
1. Role in the Regional Transportation System and Economy	175	170
Measure A – Average distance to nearest parallel roadways	80	
Measure B A - Connection to Total Jobs and Manufacturing/Distribution Jobs	30 40	
Measure C B - <u>Highway Truck Corridor Study Tiers</u> Current daily heavy commercial traffic	50 65	
Measure C D - <u>Principal Arterial Intersection Conversion Study Priorities</u> Freight project elements	15 65	
2. Usage	175	16
Measure A - Current daily person throughput	110	
Measure B - Forecast 2040 average daily traffic volume	65	
3. Equity and Housing Performance	100	109
Measure A - Connection to disadvantaged populations and project’s benefits	30	
Measure B - Housing Performance Score	70	
4. Infrastructure Age/Condition	150	15
Measure A - Date of construction	50	
Measure B - Geometric, structural, or infrastructure deficiencies	100	
5. Congestion Reduction/Air Quality	75	7.58
Measure A - Vehicle delay reduced	45 50	
Measure B - Kg of emissions reduced	30	
6. Safety	150	15
Measure A - Crashes reduced	150	
7. Multimodal Elements and Existing Connections	100	109
Measure A - Transit, bicycle, or pedestrian project elements and connections	100	
8. Risk Assessment	75	7.58
Measure A - Risk Assessment Form	75	

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

Criteria and Measures	Points	% of Total Points
9. Cost Effectiveness	100	9%
Measure A – Cost effectiveness (total project cost /total points awarded/ <u>total project cost</u>)	100	
Total	1,100	

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

1. Role in the Regional Transportation System and Economy (175-170 Points) – Tying regional policy (Thrive MSP2040) to the Regional Solicitation, this criterion measures the project’s ability to serve a transportation purpose within the regional transportation system and economy based on how well it ~~fulfills its functional classification role, serves heavy commercial traffic, and connects to employment, and manufacturing/distribution-related employment, and~~ post-secondary students, and aligns with regional studies (Highway Truck Corridor Study and Principal Arterial Intersection Conversion Study).

~~A. **MEASURE:** Address how the project route fulfills its role in the regional transportation system as identified by its current functional classification. Respond as appropriate to one type of functional classification.~~

~~**For Expander/Augmentor/Connector/Non-Freeway Principal Arterial Projects Only:**~~

- ~~• Reference the “Roadway Area Definition” map generated at the beginning of the application process. Report the total area and project length, as depicted on the “Roadway Area Definition” map, to calculate the average distance between the project and the closest parallel “A” Minor Arterials or Principal Arterials on both sides of the project.~~

~~Upload the “Roadway Area Definition” map used for this measure.~~

~~RESPONSE (Calculation):~~

~~**For Reliever Projects Only:**~~

~~For A-Minor Arterial Relievers, the measure will analyze the level of congestion on the parallel Principal Arterial to determine the importance of the Reliever. Identify the hours per day the current volume exceeds the design capacity on the Principal Arterial being relieved by the Reliever.~~

- ~~• If the Reliever is relieving a Principal Arterial that is a freeway facility, the applicant should obtain data from the current MnDOT Metro Freeway Congestion Report.~~
- ~~• If the Reliever is relieving a Principal Arterial that is a non-freeway facility, the applicant should obtain intersection turning movement or hourly volume data (within the last three years) directly from the MnDOT Metro Intersection Warrant Information website. If data is unavailable on the website, the applicant should collect or use their own intersection turning movement or hourly volume data (within the last three years) for the non-freeway facility. The volume used for the Principal Arterial being relieved should be located within the parallel length of the project. To calculate existing conditions, the applicant must obtain the hourly directional traffic volumes on a weekday, and the current lane configurations.~~

~~For the design capacity calculations, the applicant must use Metropolitan Council definition below:~~

~~**Non-Freeway Volume/Capacity Table**
Design Capacity~~

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

The assumed maximum number of vehicles per lane which pass any given point in an hour on an average day during normal operating conditions. For the purposes of responding to criteria in this solicitation packet, the following capacities shall be used:

- Expressway through lane—800 vehicles per hour;
- Arterial through lane—600 vehicles per hour;
- Left turn lane—300 vehicles per hour;
- Right turn lane—200 vehicles per hour;
- Dedicated bike lane or joint use trail—60 vehicles per hour.

RESPONSE (Calculation):

SCORING GUIDANCE (80 Points)

~~Expanders, Augmentors, Connectors, and Non-Freeway Principal Arterials: The applicant with the furthest average distance from the closest parallel A-Minor Arterials or Principal Arterials on both sides will receive the full points. The furthest average distance will be considered separately for Expanders, Augmentors, Connectors, and Non-Freeway Principal Arterials.~~

~~Relievers: The applicant with the highest number of hours per day in which current capacity exceeds the design capacity on the Principal Arterial will receive the full points. Remaining Reliever projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points, calculated as described above.~~

~~Five projects (one each for Augmentor, Connector, Expander, Reliever, and Non-Freeway Principal Arterial) may receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points (awarded to the top score in its appropriate functional classification). For example, if the Expander being scored had a distance of 8 miles and the top Expander project had an average distance of 10 miles, this applicant would receive $(8/10)*80$ points or 64 points. Metropolitan Council staff will provide average distance data for all Augmentor, Expander, Connector and Non-Freeway Principal Arterial projects to ensure consistency of methodology between applications.~~

B.A.MEASURE: Reference the “Regional Economy” map generated at the beginning of the application process. Report the existing employment and manufacturing/distribution-related employment, and post-secondary students enrolled within one mile, as depicted on the “Regional Economy” map.

Upload the “Regional Economy” map used for this measure.

RESPONSE (Data from the “Regional Economy” map):

- Existing Employment within 1 Mile: _____ (Maximum of ~~30~~40 points)
- Existing Manufacturing/Distribution-Related Employment within 1 Mile: _____ (Maximum of ~~30~~40 points)
- Existing Post-Secondary Students: _____ (Maximum of ~~18~~24 points)

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

SCORING GUIDANCE (~~30-40~~ Points)

All Census block groups that are included within or intersect the buffer area around the project will be included.

The applicant with the highest existing total employment will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had 1,000 workers within one mile and the top project had 1,500 workers, this applicant would receive $(1,000/1,500) * \del{30-40} points or ~~20-27~~ points.$

The applicant with the highest existing manufacturing/distribution-related employment will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points equal to the existing manufacturing/distribution-related employment within one mile of the project being scored divided by the project with the highest manufacturing/distribution-related employment within one mile multiplied by the maximum points available for the measure (30). For example, if the application being scored had 1,000 manufacturing/distribution-related workers within one mile and the top project had 1,500 manufacturing/distribution-related workers, this applicant would receive $(1,000/1,500) * \del{30-40} points or ~~20-27~~ points.$

The applicant with the highest number of post-secondary students will receive 18 points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the 18 points. For example, if the application being scored had 1,000 students within one mile and the top project had 1,500 students, this applicant would receive $(1,000/1,500) * \del{18-24} points or ~~12-16~~ points.$

The scorer will assess if the applicant would score highest with the total employment part of the measure, the manufacturing/distribution employment part of the measure, or the education part of the measure and give the applicant the highest of the three scores out of a maximum of ~~30-40~~ points.

Note: Due to the use of multiple sub-measures, two applicants will receive the full ~~30-40~~ points.

B. MEASURE: This criterion relies on the results on the Highway Truck Corridor Study, which prioritized all roadways based on truck volume, truck percentage of total traffic, proximity to freight clusters, and proximity to regional freight terminals. (65 points)

Use the final study report for this measure:

<https://metro council.org/Transportation/Planning-2/Transit-Plans,-Studies-Reports/Highways-Roads/Truck-Freight-Corridor-Study.aspx>

RESPONSE Select one for your project, based on the Highway Truck Corridor Study):

- Tier 1: (65 Points)
- Tier 2: (45 Points)
- Tier 3: (25 Points)
- None of the tiers: (0 Points)

~~Provide the current daily heavy commercial traffic at one location along the A-Minor Arterial or Non-Freeway Principal Arterial project length. It is required that an actual count is collected, or that available data from within the last three years is used (from the city, county~~

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

~~or MnDOT). Heavy commercial traffic is defined as all trucks with at least two axles and six tires. (50 Points)~~

RESPONSE:

- ~~• Location: _____~~
- ~~• Current daily heavy commercial traffic volume: _____~~
- ~~• Date heavy commercial count taken: _____~~

SCORING GUIDANCE (50 Points)

~~The applicant with the highest daily heavy commercial traffic at a location along the project length will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had a heavy commercial volume of 750 vehicles and the top project had a heavy commercial volume of 1,000 vehicles, this applicant would receive $(750/1,000)*50$ points, or 38 points.~~

- C. **MEASURE:** This criterion relies on the results on the Principal Arterial Intersection Conversion Study, which prioritized non-freeway principal arterial intersections. (65 points) ~~Discuss any freight elements that are included as part of the project and how they improve efficiency, security, or safety.~~

Use the final study report for this measure: metro council.org/PAICS

RESPONSE Select one for your project, based on the Principal Arterial Intersection Conversion Study):

- Proposed at-grade project that improves a High Priority Intersection: (65 Points)
- Proposed at-grade project that improves a Medium Priority Intersection: (55 Points)
- Proposed at-grade project that improves a Low Priority Intersection: (45 Points)
- Not listed as a priority in the study: (0 Points)

~~Address how the proposed project safely integrates freight. Freight elements could be project elements such as upgrading a non-ten-ton roadway to a ten-ton roadway, adding paved shoulders, wider shoulders, acceleration lanes, or longer turning lanes added specifically to accommodate freight movements.~~

RESPONSE (Limit 1,400 characters; approximately 200 words):

SCORING GUIDANCE (15 Points)

~~The project with the most comprehensive freight elements included as part of the project will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a share of the full points at the scorer's discretion.~~

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

2. Usage (175 Points) – This criterion quantifies the project’s potential impact by measuring the current daily person throughput and future vehicular traffic that will be served by the project. These roadway users directly benefit from the project improvements on the “A” Minor Arterial or Non-Freeway Principal Arterial.

A. **MEASURE:** The applicant must identify the location along the project length and provide the current AADT volume from the MnDOT 50-series maps and existing transit routes that travel on the road (reference Transit Connections Map). Ridership data will be provided by the Metropolitan Council staff, if public transit is currently provided on the project length. Metropolitan Council staff will calculate the current daily person throughput at one location along the “A” Minor Arterial or Non-Freeway Principal Arterial project length using the current average annual daily traffic (AADT) volume and average annual ridership.

- Current Daily Person Throughput = (current average annual daily traffic volume x 1.30 vehicle occupancy) + average annual daily transit ridership (~~2015~~2017)

RESPONSE:

- Location: _____
- Current AADT volume: _____
- Existing Transit Routes on the Project: _____

SCORING GUIDANCE (110 Points)

The applicant with highest current daily person throughput will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had a daily person throughput of 1,000 vehicles and the top project within the same functional classification had a daily person throughput of 1,500 vehicles, this applicant would receive $(1,000/1,500) * 110$ points or 73 points.

B. **MEASURE:** Provide the forecast (2040) average daily traffic volume at the same location along the “A” Minor Arterial or Non-Freeway Principal Arterial project length, as identified in the previous measure. The applicant may choose to use a county or city travel demand model based on the Metropolitan Council model to identify the forecast (2040) average daily traffic volume or have Metropolitan Council staff determine the forecast volume using the Metropolitan Council model and project location. Respond as appropriate to the use of one type of forecast model.

RESPONSE:

- Use Metropolitan Council model to determine forecast (2040) ADT volume
- If checked, METC Staff will provide Forecast (2040) ADT volume

OR

RESPONSE:

- Identify the approved county or city travel demand model to determine forecast (2040) ADT volume: _____
- Forecast (2040) ADT volume : _____

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

SCORING GUIDANCE (65 Points)

The applicant with the highest forecast (2040) ADT volume will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had a daily forecast of 28,000 vehicles and the top project had a daily forecast of 32,000 vehicles, this applicant would receive $(28,000/32,000)*65$ points or 57 points.

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

3. Equity and Housing Performance (100 Points) – This criterion addresses the project’s positive and negative impacts to low-income populations, people of color, children, people with disabilities, and the elderly. The criterion also evaluates a community’s efforts to promote affordable housing.

- A. **MEASURE:** Reference the “Socio-Economic Conditions” map generated at the beginning of the application process. Identify the project’s location as it applies in the listed responses below. Describe the project’s positive benefits, and negative impacts, and mitigation for low-income populations; people of color; children, people with disabilities, and the elderly. Geographic proximity alone is not sufficient to receive the full points listed below. In order to receive the maximum points, the response should address the benefits, impacts, and mitigation for the populations listed.

Upload the “Socio-Economic Conditions” map used for this measure.

RESPONSE (Select one, based on the “Socio-Economic Conditions” map):

- Project located in Area of Concentrated Poverty with 50% or more of residents are people of color (ACP50): ~~(0 to 30 Points)~~ (up to 100% of maximum score)
- Project located in Area of Concentrated Poverty: ~~(0 to 24 Points)~~ (up to 80% of maximum score)
- Project’s census tracts are above the regional average for population in poverty or population of color: ~~(0 to 18 Points)~~ (up to 60% of maximum score)
- Project located in a census tract that is below the regional average for population in poverty or populations of color, or includes children, people with disabilities, or the elderly: ~~(0 to 12 Points)~~ (up to 40% of maximum score)

RESPONSE (Limit 2,800 characters; approximately 400 words):

SCORING GUIDANCE (30 Points)

Based on the “Socio-Economic Conditions” map’s output, the applicant will select the appropriate option from the above bullets. However, geographic proximity alone is not sufficient to receive full points. The applicant must fully describe the positive benefits and negative impacts (with mitigation to address the issue) for those identified groups. Each project will first be graded on a 10-point scale, not accounting for geography. Each score from the 10-point scale will then be adjusted to the appropriate geography. The project with the most positive benefits and appropriate mitigation for negative impacts will receive the full points relative to its maximum geographic sub-area defined above. Remaining projects will receive a share of the full points at the scorer’s discretion. This response is intended to be qualitative. Metropolitan Council staff will score this measure.

Note: Due to the geographic adjustment to scores, it is possible that the above process will result in no project receiving the maximum allotment of 30 points. In this case, the highest-scoring application for this measure will be adjusted to receive the full 30 points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had 10 points and the top project had 20 points, this applicant would receive $(10/20) * 30$ points or 15 points.

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

- B. *MEASURE*: Metropolitan Council staff will award points to the project based on the ~~2015~~-2017 Housing Performance Score for the city or township in which the project is located. The score includes consideration of affordability and diversification, local initiatives to facilitate affordable workforce housing development or preservation, and density of residential development. If the project is in more than one jurisdiction, the points will be awarded based on a weighted average using the length of the project in each jurisdiction.

For stand-alone intersection, bridge, underpass, and interchange projects, a one-mile radius-buffer will be drawn around the project. If the radius-buffer enters more than one jurisdiction, the points will be awarded based on the proportionate population of the Census blocks in each jurisdiction that are all or partially located in the area within the one-mile radius-buffer.

If a project is located in a city or township with no allocation of affordable housing need (either there is no forecasted household growth or the area does not have land to support sewered development), then the project will not be disadvantaged by this measure and the project's total score will be adjusted as a result.

RESPONSE (Affordable Housing Score completed by Metropolitan Council staff):

- City/Township: _____
- Length of Segment (Population for stand-alone projects from Regional Economy map) within City/Township: _____

SCORING GUIDANCE (70 Points)

The applicant with the highest ~~2015~~-2017 Housing Performance Score will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had a Housing Performance Score of 55 and the top project had a Housing Performance Score of 90, this applicant would receive $(55/90)*70$ points or 43 points.

Note: Metropolitan Council staff will score this measure.

Projects will use the city Housing Performance Score based on the project location. If a project is located in more than one jurisdiction, the points will be awarded based on a weighted average of the city or township scores for the project location based on the length of the project in each jurisdiction. For stand-alone intersection, bridge, underpass, and interchange projects, a one-mile radius-buffer will be drawn around the project. If the radius-buffer enters more than one jurisdiction, the points will be awarded based on the proportionate population of the Census blocks in each jurisdiction that are all or partially located in the area within the one-mile radius-buffer.

If a project is located in a city or township with no allocation of affordable housing need (either there is no forecasted household growth or the area does not have land to support sewered development), then the project will not be disadvantaged by this measure and the project's total score will be adjusted as a result.

If this is the case, then the total points possible in the application will be 930 instead of 1,000. The total points awarded through the rest of the application (900 as a hypothetical example) will be divided by 930, then multiplied by 1,000. Therefore, a project scoring 900 out of 930, will equate to 968 points on a 1,000-point scale.

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

If a portion of the project is located in a city with an affordable housing allocation and the other portion is located in a township with no affordable housing allocation, then a combination of the weighted average and no affordable housing methodologies should be used. This will result in a total score that will be somewhere between 930 and 1,000; then the score will need to be adjusted to fit a 1,000-point scale.

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

4. Infrastructure Age/Condition (150 Points) – This criterion will assess the age of the roadway facility being improved. Roadway improvement investments should focus on the higher needs of an aging facility, whereas, improvements to a recently reconstructed roadway does not display an efficient use of funds.

- A. **MEASURE:** Identify the year of the roadway’s original construction or most recent reconstruction. If the reconstruction date is used for the roadway, a full reconstruction must have been completed during the indicated year. Routine maintenance, such as an overlay or sealcoating project does not constitute a reconstruction and should not be used to determine the infrastructure age.

RESPONSE:

- Year of original roadway construction or most recent reconstruction: _____
- Location(s) used: _____

SCORING GUIDANCE (50 Points)

The applicant with the oldest roadway will receive full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored was constructed 41 years ago and the oldest project was constructed 48 years ago, this applicant would receive $(41/48) * 50$ points or 43 points.

Note: Because of the reporting of year of construction, it is possible for multiple projects to receive the full allotment of 50 points.

- B. **MEASURE:** Select the geometric, structural, or infrastructure deficiencies listed below that will be improved as part of this project, as reflected in the project cost estimate. (100 Points)

RESPONSE (Select all that apply. Please identify the proposed improvement):

- Improving ~~a non-10-ton~~ roadway to better accommodate freight movements ~~a 10-ton roadway~~: 0-15 pts
 - **RESPONSE (Limit 700 characters; approximately 100 words):**
- Improved clear zones or sight lines: 0-10 pts
 - **RESPONSE (Limit 700 characters; approximately 100 words)**
- Improved roadway geometrics: 0-15 pts
 - **RESPONSE (Limit 700 characters; approximately 100 words)**
- Access management enhancements: 0-20 pts
 - **RESPONSE (Limit 700 characters; approximately 100 words)**
- Vertical/horizontal alignments improvements: 0-10 pts
 - **RESPONSE (Limit 700 characters; approximately 100 words)**
- Improved stormwater mitigation: 0-10 pts
 - **RESPONSE (Limit 700 characters; approximately 100 words)**
- Signals/lighting upgrades: 0-10 pts
 - **RESPONSE (Limit 700 characters; approximately 100 words)**
- Other Improvements: 0-10 pts
 - **RESPONSE (Limit 700 characters; approximately 100 words)**

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

SCORING GUIDANCE (100 Points)

Within each improvement sub-measure, the answer most responsive to the need will receive full (e.g., the top project that improves clear zones or sight lines will receive 10 points), with each remaining project receiving a share of the full points at the scorer's discretion. It is possible for more than one project to receive maximum points for a sub-measure.

The highest-scoring application for this measure will be adjusted to receive the full 100 points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points equal to the points for the project being scored divided by the points assigned to the highest-scoring project multiplied by the maximum points available for the measure (100). For example, if the application being scored had 25 points and the top project had 50 points, this applicant would receive $(25/50)*100$ points or 50 points.

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

5. Congestion Reduction/Air Quality (75–80Points) – This criterion measures the project’s ability to reduce congestion. In addition, it will address its ability to improve congested intersections operating at unacceptable levels of service during peak hour conditions. The project will also be measured based on its ability to reduce emissions.

A. **MEASURE:** Conduct a capacity analysis at one or more of the intersections (or rail crossings) being improved by the roadway project using existing turning movement counts (collected within the last three years) in the a.m. or p.m. peak hour and the Synchro or HCM software. The applicant must show the current total peak hour delay at one or more intersections (or rail crossings) and the reduction in total peak hour intersection delay at these intersections (or rail crossings) in seconds due to the project. If more than one intersection (or rail crossing) is examined, then the delay reduced by each intersection can be added together to determine the total delay reduced by the project.

- For roadway projects that include a railroad crossing, the applicant should conduct fieldwork during either the a.m. or p.m. peak hour to determine the total peak hour delay reduced by the project. Applicants can also add together intersection delay reduced and railroad delay reduced, if they both will be improved by the project.

The applicant should include the appropriate Synchro or HCM full reports (including the Timing Page Report) that support the improvement in total peak hour delay and should conduct the analysis using the following:

- Under the network settings, all defaults should be used for lanes, volumes, phases and simulation
- Use Synchro’s automatic optimization to determine cycle, offset and splits (for traffic signals)
- Project improvements assumed in the build condition should be reflected in the total project cost, such as additional through or turn lanes and protective left-turn phasing
- Roadway lengths for intersection approaches must be the same length for before and after scenarios
- An average weekday should be used for the existing conditions instead of a weekend, peak holiday, or special event time period that is not representative of the corridor for most of the year

Total Peak Hour Delay Reduced (Seconds) = Total Peak Hour Delay/Vehicle x Vehicles Per Hour

RESPONSE (Calculation):

- Total Peak Hour Delay/Vehicle without the Project (Seconds/Vehicle): _____
- Total Peak Hour Delay/Vehicle with the Project (Seconds/Vehicle): _____
- Total Peak Hour Delay/Vehicle Reduced by the Project (Seconds/Vehicle): _____
- Volume (Vehicles Per Hour): _____
- Total Peak Hour Delay Reduced by the Project (Seconds): _____
- EXPLANATION of methodology used to calculate railroad crossing delay, if applicable (Limit 1,400 characters; approximately 200 words):

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

SCORING GUIDANCE (50 Points)

The applicant with the most peak hour vehicle delay reduced by the project improvement will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the points. For example, if the application being scored reduced delay by 5,000 seconds and the top project reduced delay by 25,000 seconds, this applicant would receive $(5,000/25,000)*50$ points, or 10 points.

- B. **MEASURE:** Using the Synchro or HCM analysis completed in the previous measure, identify the total peak hour emissions reduction in kilograms (CO, NO_x, VOC) due to the project. The applicant should include the appropriate Synchro or full HCM reports (including the Timing Page Report) that support the improvement in total peak hour emissions. If more than one intersection is examined, then the emissions reduced by each intersection can be added together to determine the total emissions reduced by the project.

Roadway projects that do not include railroad grade-separation elements:

- Total Peak Hour Emissions Reduced (Kilograms)= Total Peak Hour Emissions without the project – Total Peak Hour Emissions with the Project ~~Reduced Per Vehicle x Vehicles Per Hour~~

RESPONSE (Calculation):

- Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions ~~/Vehicle~~ without the Project (Kilograms): _____
- Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions ~~/Vehicle~~ with the Project (Kilograms): _____
- Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions Reduced ~~/Vehicle~~ by the Project (Kilograms): _____
- ~~Volume (Vehicles Per Hour): _____~~
- ~~Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions Reduced by the Project (Kilograms): _____~~

If more than one intersection is examined, the response ~~in~~ should include a total of all emissions reduced.

Roadway projects that include railroad grade-separation elements:

- For roadway projects that include a railroad crossing, the applicant needs to input four variables before and after the project to determine the change in emissions. Those variables include: speed, vehicle mile traveled, delay, and total vehicle stops. The applicant needs to conduct fieldwork during either the a.m. or p.m. peak hour to determine the existing conditions and then detail any assumptions used for conditions after the project is built. The variables will be used in the exact same equation used within the software program (i.e., Synchro) required of the other project types. Therefore, the approach to calculate the kilograms emissions reduced for railroad grade-separation projects will be comparable to intersection improvement projects.

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

RESPONSE (Calculation):

- Cruise speed in miles per hour without the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)
- Vehicle miles traveled without the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)
- Total delay in hours without the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)
- Total stops in vehicles per hour without the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)

- Cruise speed in miles per hour with the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)
- Vehicle miles traveled with the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)
- Total delay in hours with the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)
- Total stops in vehicles per hour with the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)
- Fuel consumption in gallons (F1)
- Fuel consumption in gallons (F2)
- Fuel consumption in gallons (F3)
- Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions Reduced by the Project (Kilograms):
- EXPLANATION of methodology and assumptions used:(Limit 1,400 characters; approximately 200 words)
-

Speed = cruise speed in miles per hour

Total Travel = vehicle miles traveled

Total Delay = total delay in hours

Stops = total stops in vehicles per hour

$$K1 = 0.075283 - 0.0015892 * Speed + 0.000015066 * Speed^2$$

$$K2 = 0.7329$$

$$K3 = 0.0000061411 * Speed^2$$

F1 (or F2 – without the project) = Fuel consumption in gallons

$$F1 = Total Travel * k1 + Total Delay * k2 + Stops * k3$$

$$F2 = Total Travel * k1 + Total Delay * k2 + Stops * k3$$

$$F3 = F1 - F2$$

$$CO = F3 * 0.0699 \text{ kg/gallon}$$

$$NO_x = F3 * 0.0136 \text{ kg/gallon}$$

$$VOC = F3 * 0.0162 \text{ kg/gallon}$$

Equation Automatically Provides Emissions Reduced:

- Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions Reduced by the Project (Kilograms):
_____ (Online Calculation)

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

- EXPLANATION of methodology and assumptions used (Limit 1,400 characters; approximately 200 words):

SCORING GUIDANCE (30 Points)

The applicant with the most kilograms reduced by the project improvement will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full. For example, if the application being scored reduced emissions by 3 kilograms and the top project reduced emissions by 5 kilograms, this applicant would receive $(3/5)*30$ points or 18 points.

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

6. Safety (150 Points) – This criterion addresses the project’s ability to correct deficiencies and improve the overall safety of a roadway facility. It will assess the project’s monetized safety benefits.

A. MEASURE: Respond as appropriate to one of the two project types below. (150 Points)

Roadway projects that do not include railroad grade-separation elements:

Calculate the reduction in the total number of crashes due to improvements on the “A”-Minor Arterial or Non-Freeway Principal Arterial made by the project. The applicant must base the estimate of crash reduction on the methodology consistent with the latest Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) application. Applicants should focus on the crash analysis for reactive projects ~~starting on page 7 through page 11, in addition to Appendix A, E, and F.~~

Crash data must be obtained for the project length using the MnDOT TIS system average for calendar years ~~2013-2015~~ through ~~2015~~2017. Crash data should include all crash types and severity, including pedestrian and bicycle crashes.

Applicants should request crash data from MnDOT as early as possible. The applicant must then attach a listing of the crashes reduced and the HSIP Benefit/Cost (B/C) worksheet that identifies the resulting benefit associated with the project. As part of the response, please detail and attach the crash modification factor(s) used from FHWA’s Crash Modification Factors Clearinghouse: <http://www.cmfclearinghouse.org/>. This measure requests the monetized safety benefit of the project. The cost of the project is scored in the Cost Effectiveness criterion.

RESPONSE (Calculation):

- Crash Modification Factors Used: _____
- Rationale for Crash Modifications Selected (Limit 1,400 characters; approximately 200 words): _____
- Project Benefit (\$) from B/C ratio: _____
- Explanation of Methodology: _____

Roadway projects that include railroad grade-separation elements:

Since the number of observed crashes at an existing at-grade railroad crossing is minor compared to an intersection, this measure will assess crash risk exposure that exists in order to compare projects. As a proactive safety measure, railroad grade-separation projects eliminate the crash risk exposure.

- Crash Risk Exposure Eliminated = current average annual daily traffic volume x average number of daily trains at the at-grade crossing

RESPONSE (Calculation):

- Current AADT volume: _____
- Average daily trains: _____
- Crash Risk Exposure eliminated: _____

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

SCORING GUIDANCE (150 Points)

This measure will be considered separately for projects that do and do not include a railroad grade-separation project. As a result, two projects (one without a railroad grade-separation project and one with a railroad grade-separation) may receive the full points.

For projects that do not include a grade-separation project, the applicant with the highest dollar value of benefits will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had safety benefits of \$11,000,000 and the top project had safety benefits of \$16,000,000, this applicant would receive $(11,000,000/16,000,000)*150$ points or 103 points.

For railroad grade-separation projects, the applicant with the highest crash risk exposure eliminated due to the project will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored reduced 11,000 exposures and the top project reduced 16,000, this applicant would receive $(11,000 /16,000)*150$ points or 103 points.

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

7. Multimodal Elements and Existing Connections (100 Points) - This criterion measures how the project improves the travel experience, safety, and security for other modes of transportation and addresses the safe integration of these modes. The *Transportation Policy Plan* requires that explicit consideration of all users of the transportation system be considered in the planning and scoping phase of roadway projects.

- A. ***MEASURE:*** Discuss any bicycle, pedestrian, or transit elements that are included as part of the project and how they improve the travel experience, safety, and security for users of these modes. Applicants should make sure that new multimodal elements described in the response are accounted for as part of the cost estimate form earlier in the application. Applicants may want to reference how the proposed multimodal improvements positively affect identified alignments in the Regional Bicycle Transportation Network (RBTN), if applicable. (100 points)

Also, describe the existing bicycle, pedestrian, and transit connections. Furthermore, address how the proposed project safely integrates all modes of transportation (i.e., vehicles, bicyclists, transit, and pedestrians) and, if applicable, supports planned transitway stations. Applicants should note if there is no transit service in the project area and identify supporting studies or plans that address why a mode may not be incorporated in the project (e.g., a bicycle system plan that locates bikeway facilities on a lower-volume parallel route).

RESPONSE (Limit 2,800 characters; approximately 400 words):

SCORING GUIDANCE (100 Points)

The project with the most comprehensive multimodal elements included as part of the project will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a share of the full points at the scorer's discretion. The project score will be based on the quality of the improvements, as opposed to being based solely on the number of modes addressed.

Scorers should make sure that new multimodal elements described in the response are accounted for on the cost estimate form earlier in the application.

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

8. Risk Assessment (75 Points) – This criterion measures the number of risks associated with successfully building the project. High-risk applications increase the likelihood that projects will withdraw at a later date. ~~and the steps already completed in the project development process.~~ These steps are outlined in the checklist in the required Risk Assessment.

- A. *MEASURE*: Applications involving construction must complete the Risk Assessment. This checklist includes activities completed to-date, as well as an assessment of risks (e.g., right-of-way acquisition, proximity to historic properties, etc.).

RESPONSE (Complete Risk Assessment):

SCORING GUIDANCE (75 Points)

The applicant with the most points on the Risk Assessment (more points equate to less project risk) will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had 40 points and the top project had 70 points, this applicant would receive $(40/70)*75$ points or 43 points.

Roadway Reconstruction and Modernization

9. Cost Effectiveness (100 Points) – This criterion will assess the project’s cost effectiveness based on the total TAB-eligible project cost (not including noise walls) and total points awarded in the previous criteria.

A. *MEASURE: This measure will calculate the cost effectiveness of the project.* Metropolitan Council staff will divide the number of points awarded in the previous criteria by the TAB-eligible project cost (not including noise walls) ~~by the total number of points awarded in the previous criteria.~~

- Cost- effectiveness = ~~total TAB-eligible project cost (not including noise walls)~~/total number of points awarded in previous criteria/total TAB-eligible project cost

RESPONSE (This measure will be calculated after the scores for the other measures are tabulated by the Scoring Committee):

- Total Project Cost (entered in Project Cost Form): _____

SCORING GUIDANCE (100 Points)

The applicant with the most points (i.e., the benefits) per ~~lowest dollar value per point earned in the application (i.e., the benefits)~~ will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the top project ~~had 35,000~~ received .0005 points per dollar and the application being scored received .00025 points per dollar, ~~had 70,000~~, this applicant would receive $(.0005/0.00025) * 100$ points for 50 points.

TOTAL: 1,100 POINTS

Roadway Expansion – Prioritizing Criteria and Measures

August 17, 2017

Definition: A roadway project that adds thru-lane capacity. Projects must be located on a non-freeway principal arterial or A-minor arterial functionally-classified roadway, consistent with the latest TAB approved functional classification map. However, A-minor connectors cannot be expanded with new thru lane capacity with these federal funds per regional policy and must apply in the Reconstruction/Modernization and Spot Mobility application category.

Examples of Roadway Expansion Projects:

- New roadways
- Two-lane to four-lane expansions
- ~~Two-lane to three-lane expansions~~
- Four-lane to six-lane expansions
- New interchanges with or without associated frontage roads
- Expanded interchanges with either new ramp movements or added thru lanes
- New bridges, overpasses and underpasses

Scoring:

Criteria and Measures	Points	% of Total Points
1. Role in the Regional Transportation System and Economy	175	19.5%
Measure A - Average distance to nearest <u>Relieves a congested</u> parallel roadways	80	40
Measure B - Connection to Total Jobs, and Manufacturing/Distribution Jobs, <u>and Students</u>	30	40
Measure C - Current daily heavy commercial traffic <u>Highway Truck Corridor Study Tiers</u>	50	65
Measure D - <u>Principal Arterial Intersection Conversion Study</u> Priorities <u>Freight project elements</u>	15	65
2. Usage	175	19.5%
Measure A - Current daily person throughput	110	
Measure B - Forecast 2040 average daily traffic volume	65	
3. Equity and Housing Performance	100	10.9%
Measure A - Connection to disadvantaged populations and project's benefits, impacts, and mitigation	30	
Measure B - Housing Performance Score	70	
4. Infrastructure Age	75	7.5%
Measure A - Date of construction	75	40
5. Congestion Reduction/Air Quality	150	15.13%
Measure A - Vehicle delay reduced	100	
Measure B - Kg of emissions reduced	50	
6. Safety	150	15.13%
Measure A - Crashes reduced	150	
7. Multimodal Elements and Existing Connections	100	10.9%
Measure A - Transit, bicycle, or pedestrian project elements & connections	100	
8. Risk Assessment	75	7%
Measure A - Risk Assessment Form	75	
9. Cost Effectiveness	100	9%

Roadway Expansion

Measure A - Cost effectiveness (total project cost /total points awarded/ <u>total project cost</u>)	100
Total	1,100

1. Role in the Regional Transportation System and Economy (175-210 Points) – Tying regional policy (Thrive MSP2040) to the Regional Solicitation, this criterion measures the project’s ability to serve a transportation purpose within the regional transportation system and economy based on how well it ~~fulfills its functional classification role, relieves congested parallel routes, serves heavy commercial traffic, and~~ connects to employment, manufacturing/distribution-related employment, and students; and aligns with regional studies (i.e., the Highway Truck Corridor Study and the Principal Arterial Intersection Conversion Study) ~~students, and manufacturing/distribution-related employment.~~

- A. **MEASURE:** ~~Address how the project route fulfills its role in the regional transportation system as identified by its current functional classification. Respond as appropriate to one type of functional classification.~~

~~For Expander, Augmentor, or Non-Freeway Principal Arterial Projects Only:~~

- ~~Reference the “Roadway Area Definition” map generated at the beginning of the application process. Report the total area and project length, as depicted on the “Roadway Area Definition” map, to calculate the average distance between the project and the closest parallel “A” Minor Arterials or Principal Arterials on both sides of the project.~~

~~Upload the “Roadway Area Definition” map used for this measure.~~

RESPONSE (Calculation):

~~For Reliever Projects Only:~~

~~For A Minor Arterial Relievers,~~ The measure will analyze the level of congestion on the parallel Principal Arterial to determine the importance of the Reliever roadway in relieving the principal arterial system. A-minor augmentors, expanders, and relievers, as well as non-freeway principal arterials can provide relief to congested principal arterials. Identify the hours per day the current volume exceeds the design capacity on the Principal Arterial being relieved by the Reliever roadway.

- ~~If the Reliever project is relieving a Principal Arterial that is a freeway facility, the applicant should obtain data from the current MnDOT Metro Freeway Congestion Report.~~
- ~~If the Reliever project is relieving a Principal Arterial that is a non-freeway facility, the applicant should obtain intersection turning movement or hourly volume data (within the last three years) directly from the [MnDOT Metro Intersection Warrant Information website](#). If data is unavailable on the website, the applicant should collect or use their own intersection turning movement or hourly volume data (within the last three years) for the non-freeway facility. The volume used for the Principal Arterial being relieved should be located within the parallel length of the project. To calculate existing conditions, the applicant must obtain the hourly directional traffic volumes on a weekday, and the current lane configurations.~~

For the design capacity calculations, the applicant must use Metropolitan Council definition below:

Non-Freeway Volume/Capacity Table

Design Capacity

The assumed maximum number of vehicles per lane which pass any given point in an hour on an average day during normal operating conditions. For the purposes of responding to criteria in this solicitation packet, the following capacities shall be used:

- Expressway through lane - 800 vehicles per hour;
- Arterial through lane - 600 vehicles per hour;
- Left-turn lane - 300 vehicles per hour;
- Right-turn lane - 200 vehicles per hour;
- Dedicated bike lane or joint use trail - 60 vehicles per hour.

RESPONSE (Calculation):

- Hours per day of congestion on parallel principal arterial:
- Parallel roadway selected and location on that segment:

SCORING GUIDANCE (840 Points)

~~Expanders, Augmentors, and Non-Freeway Principal Arterials: The applicant with the furthest average distance from the closest parallel A-Minor Arterials or Principal Arterials on both sides will receive the full points. The furthest average distance will be considered separately for Expanders, Augmentors, and Non-Freeway Principal Arterials.~~

~~Relievers:~~ The applicant with the highest number of hours per day in which current capacity exceeds the design capacity on the Principal Arterial will receive the full points. Remaining ~~Reliever~~ projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points, calculated as described above. The scorer will have discretion in determining whether the applicant selected the correct, parallel principal arterial (and location on that segment) and if the proposed roadway provides relief to the parallel principal arterial.

~~Four projects (one each for Augmentor, Expander, Reliever, and Non-Freeway Principal Arterial) may receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points (awarded to the top score in the appropriate functional classification). For example, if the Expander being scored had a distance of 8 miles and the top Expander project had an average distance of 10 miles, this applicant would receive $(8/10)*80$ points or 64 points. Metropolitan Council staff will provide average distance data for all Augmentor, Expander, and Non-Freeway Principal Arterial projects to ensure consistency of methodology between applications.~~

- B. MEASURE: Reference the “Regional Economy” map generated at the beginning of the application process. Report the existing employment, manufacturing/distribution-related employment, and post-secondary students enrolled within one mile, as depicted on the “Regional Economy” map.

Upload the “Regional Economy” map used for this measure.

RESPONSE (Data from the “Regional Economy” map):

- Existing Employment within 1 Mile: _____ (Maximum of ~~30~~40 points)

- Existing Manufacturing/Distribution-Related Employment within 1 Mile: _____ (Maximum of ~~30~~40 points)
- Existing Post-Secondary Students: _____ (Maximum of ~~18~~25 points)

SCORING GUIDANCE (340 Points)

All Census block groups that are included within or intersect the buffer area around the project will be included.

The applicant with the highest existing total employment will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had 1,000 workers within one mile and the top project had 1,500 workers, this applicant would receive $(1,000/1,500) * \del{30}\u{40}$ points or 20 points.

The applicant with the highest existing manufacturing/distribution-related employment will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points equal to the existing manufacturing/distribution-related employment within one mile of the project being scored divided by the project with the highest manufacturing/distribution-related employment within one mile multiplied by the maximum points available for the measure. For example, if the application being scored had 1,000 manufacturing/distribution-related workers within one mile and the top project had 1,500 manufacturing/distribution-related workers, this applicant would receive $(1,000/1,500) * \del{30}\u{40}$ points or 20 points.

The applicant with the highest number of post-secondary students will receive 18 points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the 18 points. For example, if the application being scored had 1,000 students within one mile and the top project had 1,500 students, this applicant would receive $(1,000/1,500) * \del{18}\u{25}$ points or 12 points.

The scorer will assess if the applicant would score highest with the total employment part of the measure, the manufacturing/distribution employment part of the measure, or the education part of the measure and give the applicant the highest of the three scores out of a maximum of ~~30~~40 points.

Note: Due to the use of multiple sub-measures, two applicants will receive the full ~~30~~40 points.

C. MEASURE: This criterion relies on the results on the Truck Highway Corridor Study, which prioritized all roadways based on truck volume, truck percentage of total traffic, proximity to freight clusters, and proximity to regional freight terminals. (65 points)

Use the final study report for this measure:

<https://metro council.org/Transportation/Planning-2/Transit-Plans,-Studies-Reports/Highways-Roads/Truck-Freight-Corridor-Study.aspx>

RESPONSE Select one for your project, based on the Highway Truck Corridor Study):

- Tier 1: (65 Points)
- Tier 2: (45 Points)
- Tier 3: (25 Points)

- None of the tiers: (0 Points)

~~C. Provide the current daily heavy commercial traffic at one location along the A-Minor Arterial or Non-Freeway Principal Arterial's project length. It is required that an actual count is collected, or that available data from within the last three years is used (from the city, county or MnDOT). Heavy commercial traffic is defined as all trucks with at least two axles and six tires.~~

- ~~For new roadways, using a traffic model, identify the estimated current daily heavy commercial traffic volume.~~

~~**RESPONSE:**~~

- ~~Location: _____~~
- ~~Current daily heavy commercial traffic volume: _____~~
- ~~Date heavy commercial count taken: _____~~

SCORING GUIDANCE (50 Points)

The applicant with the highest daily heavy commercial traffic at a location along the project length will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had a heavy commercial volume of 750 vehicles and the top project had a heavy commercial volume of 1,000 vehicles, this applicant would receive $(750/1,000)*50$ points, or 38 points.

D. **MEASURE:** This criterion relies on the results on the Principal Arterial Intersection Conversion Study, which prioritized non-freeway principal arterial intersections. In addition to interchange projects, other lane expansion projects that make improvements to a low, medium, or high priority intersection can also earn points in this measure. ~~Discuss any freight elements that are included as part of the project and how they improve efficiency, security, or safety. (15-65 points)~~

Use the final study report for this measure: metro council.org/PAICS

~~Address how the proposed project safely integrates freight. Freight elements could be project elements such as upgrading a non ten ton roadway to a ten ton roadway, adding paved shoulders, wider shoulders, acceleration lanes, or longer turning lanes added specifically to accommodate freight movements.~~

~~**RESPONSE** Select one for your project, based on the Principal Arterial Intersection Conversion Study): (Limit 1,400 characters; approximately 200 words):~~

- Proposed interchange or at-grade project that improves a High Priority Intersection: (65 Points)
- Proposed at-grade project that improves a Medium Priority Intersection: (55 Points)
- Proposed at-grade project that improves a Low Priority Intersection: (45 Points)
- Proposed interchange that improves a Medium Priority Intersection: (35 Points)
- Proposed interchange project that improves a Low Priority Intersection: (0 Points)
- Not listed as a priority in the study: (0 Points)

SCORING GUIDANCE (15 Points)

The project with the most comprehensive freight elements included as part of the project will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a share of the full points at the scorer's discretion.

2. Usage (175 Points) – This criterion quantifies the project’s potential impact by measuring the current daily person throughput and future vehicular traffic that will be served by the project. These roadway users directly benefit from the project improvements on the A-Minor Arterial or Non-Freeway Principal Arterial.

A. **MEASURE:** The applicant must identify the location along the project length and provide the current AADT volume from the MnDOT 50-series maps and existing transit routes that travel on the road (reference Transit Connections Map). Ridership data will be provided by the Metropolitan Council staff, if public transit is currently provided on the project length. Metropolitan Council staff will calculate the current daily person throughput at one location along the “A” Minor Arterial or Non-Freeway Principal Arterial project length using the current average annual daily traffic (AADT) volume and average annual ridership.

- Current Daily Person Throughput = (current average annual daily traffic volume x 1.30 vehicle occupancy) + average annual daily transit ridership (2015-2017)
- For new roadways, identify the estimated existing daily traffic volume based on traffic modeling.

RESPONSE:

- Location: _____
- Current AADT volume: _____
- Existing Transit Routes on the Project: _____
- Transit routes that will likely be diverted to ~~a~~ the new proposed roadway (if applicable): _____

SCORING GUIDANCE (110 Points)

The applicant with highest current daily person throughput will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had a daily person throughput of 1,000 vehicles and the top project within the same functional classification had a daily person throughput of 1,500 vehicles, this applicant would receive $(1,000/1,500)*110$ points or 73 points.

B. **MEASURE:** Provide the forecast (2040) average daily traffic volume at the same location along the “A” Minor Arterial or Non-Freeway Principal Arterial project length, as identified in the previous measure. The applicant may choose to use a county or city travel demand model based on the Metropolitan Council model to identify the forecast (2040) average daily traffic volume or have Metropolitan Council staff determine the forecast volume using the Metropolitan Council model and project location. Respond as appropriate to the use of one type of forecast model. (65 Points)

- For new roadways, identify the modeled forecast daily traffic volume ~~if this information is available. If not available, then identify the forecast volumes that will be relocated from any parallel roadway(s) to the new roadway.~~

RESPONSE:

- Use Metropolitan Council model to determine forecast (2040) ADT volume
- If checked, METC Staff will provide Forecast (2040) ADT volume

OR

RESPONSE:

- Identify the approved county or city travel demand model to determine forecast (2040) ADT volume: _____
- Forecast (2040) ADT volume : _____

SCORING GUIDANCE (65 Points)

The applicant with the highest forecast (2040) ADT volume will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had a daily forecast of 28,000 vehicles and the top project had a daily forecast of 32,000 vehicles, this applicant would receive $(28,000/32,000) * 65$ points or 57 points.

3. Equity and Housing Performance (100 Points) – This criterion addresses the project’s positive and negative impacts to low-income populations, people of color, children, people with disabilities, and the elderly. The criterion also evaluates a community’s efforts to promote affordable housing.

- A. **MEASURE:** Reference the “Socio-Economic Conditions” map generated at the beginning of the application process. Identify the project’s location as it applies in the listed responses below. Describe the project’s positive benefits, and negative impacts, and mitigation for low-income populations; people of color; children, people with disabilities, and the elderly. Geographic proximity alone is not sufficient to receive the full points listed below. In order to receive the maximum points, the response should address the benefits, impacts, and mitigation for the populations listed.

Upload the “Socio-Economic Conditions” map used for this measure.

RESPONSE (Select one, based on the “Socio-Economic Conditions” map):

- Project located in Area of Concentrated Poverty with 50% or more of residents are people of color (ACP50): ~~(0 to 30 Points)~~ (up to 100% of maximum score)
- Project located in Area of Concentrated Poverty: ~~(0 to 24 Points)~~ up to 80% of maximum score)
- Project’s census tracts are above the regional average for population in poverty or population of color: ~~(0 to 18 Points)~~ (up to 60% of maximum score)
- Project located in a census tract that is below the regional average for population in poverty or populations of color, or includes children, people with disabilities, or the elderly: ~~(0 to 12 Points)~~ (up to 40% of maximum score)

RESPONSE (Limit 2,800 characters; approximately 400 words):

SCORING GUIDANCE (30 Points)

Based on the “Socio-Economic Conditions” map’s output, the applicant will select the appropriate option from the above bullets. However, geographic proximity alone is not sufficient to receive full points. The applicant must fully describe the positive benefits and negative impacts (with mitigation to address the issue) for those identified groups. Each project will first be graded on a 10-point scale, not accounting for geography. Each score from the 10-point scale will then be adjusted to the appropriate geography. The project with the most positive benefits and appropriate mitigation for negative impacts will receive the full points relative to its maximum geographic sub-area defined above. Remaining projects will receive a share of the full points at the scorer’s discretion. This response is intended to be qualitative. Metropolitan Council staff will score this measure.

Note: Due to the geographic adjustment to scores, it is possible that the above process will result in no project receiving the maximum allotment of 30 points. In this case, the highest-scoring application for this measure will be adjusted to receive the full 30 points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had 10 points and the top project had 20 points, this applicant would receive $(10/20) * 30$ points or 15 points.

- B. *MEASURE*: Metropolitan Council staff will award points to the project based on the ~~2015~~-2017 Housing Performance Score for the city or township in which the project is located. The score includes consideration of affordability and diversification, local initiatives to facilitate affordable workforce housing development or preservation, and density of residential development. If the project is in more than one jurisdiction, the points will be awarded based on a weighted average using the length of the project in each jurisdiction.

For stand-alone intersection, bridge, underpass, and interchange projects, a one-mile radius-buffer will be drawn around the project. If the radius-buffer enters more than one jurisdiction, the points will be awarded based on the proportionate population of the Census blocks in each jurisdiction that are all or partially located in the area within the one-mile radius-buffer.

If a project is located in a city or township with no allocation of affordable housing need (either there is no forecasted household growth or the area does not have land to support sewered development), then the project will not be disadvantaged by this measure and the project's total score will be adjusted as a result.

RESPONSE (Affordable Housing Score completed by Metropolitan Council staff):

- City/Township: _____
- Length of Segment (Population from Regional Economy Map for stand-alone projects) within City/Township:

SCORING GUIDANCE (70 Points)

The applicant with the highest ~~2015~~-2017 Housing Performance Score will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had a Housing Performance Score of 55 and the top project had a Housing Performance Score of 90, this applicant would receive $(55/90) \times 70$ points or 43 points.

Note: Metropolitan Council staff will score this measure.

Projects will use the city Housing Performance Score based on the project location. If a project is located in more than one jurisdiction, the points will be awarded based on a weighted average of the city or township scores for the project location based on the length of the project in each jurisdiction. For stand-alone roadway (intersection, bridge, underpass, and interchange) projects, a one-mile radius-buffer will be drawn around the project. If the radius-buffer enters more than one jurisdiction, the points will be awarded based on the proportionate population of the Census blocks in each jurisdiction that are all or partially located in the area within the one-mile radius-buffer.

If a project is located in a city or township with no allocation of affordable housing need (either there is no forecasted household growth or the area does not have land to support sewered development), then the project will not be disadvantaged by this measure and the project's total score will be adjusted as a result.

If this is the case, then the total points possible in the application will be 930 instead of 1,000. The total points awarded through the rest of the application (900 as a hypothetical example) will be divided by 930, then multiplied by 1,000. Therefore, a project scoring 900 out of 930, will equate to 968 points on a 1,000-point scale.

Roadway Expansion

If a portion of the project is located in a city with an affordable housing allocation and the other portion is located in a township with no affordable housing allocation, then a combination of the weighted average and no affordable housing methodologies should be used. This will result in a total score that will be somewhere between 930 and 1,000; then the score will need to be adjusted to fit a 1,000-point scale.

4. Infrastructure Age (75-40 Points) – This criterion will assess the age of the roadway facility being improved. Roadway improvement investments should focus on the higher needs of an aging facility, whereas improvements to a recently reconstructed roadway does not display an efficient use of funds.

A. **MEASURE:** Identify the year of the roadway’s original construction or most recent reconstruction. If the reconstruction date is used for the roadway, a full reconstruction must have been completed during the indicated year. Routine maintenance, such as an overlay or sealcoating project does not constitute a reconstruction and should not be used to determine the infrastructure age.

- For new roadways, identify the average age of the parallel roadways from which traffic will be diverted to the new roadway.

RESPONSE:

- Year of original roadway construction or most recent reconstruction: _____
- Segment length: _____

SCORING GUIDANCE (75-40 Points)

The applicant with the oldest roadway will receive full points. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored was constructed 41 years ago and the oldest project was constructed 48 years ago, this applicant would receive $(41/48) * 75$ 40 points or 64-34 points.

Note: Because of the reporting of year of construction, it is possible for multiple projects to receive the full allotment of 75-40 points.

5. Congestion Reduction/Air Quality (150 Points) – This criterion measures the project’s ability to reduce intersection delay and emissions during peak hour conditions. In addition, it will address its ability to improve congested intersections operating at unacceptable levels of service during peak hour conditions.

A. **MEASURE:** Conduct a capacity analysis at one or more of the intersections (or rail crossings) being improved by the roadway project using existing turning movement counts (collected within the last three years) in the weekday a.m. or p.m. peak hour and Synchro or HCM software. The analysis must include build and no build conditions (with and without the project improvements). The applicant must show the current total peak hour delay at one or more intersections (or rail crossings) and the reduction in total peak hour intersection delay at these intersections (or rail crossings) in seconds, due to the project. If more than one intersection is examined, then the delay reduced by each intersection (or rail crossing) can be added together to determine the total delay reduced by the project. If expanding thru lanes or building a new interchange on an existing signalized corridor, signal retiming must be completed in the five-year time period before the project was submitted for funding (i.e., completed a signal retiming between 2013 and 2018), consistent with regional policy in the 2040 Transportation Policy Plan.

- For new roadways, identify the key intersection(s) on any parallel roadway(s) that will experience reduced delay as a result of traffic diverting to the new roadway. If more than one intersection is examined, then the delay reduced by each intersection can be added together.
- For roadway projects that include a railroad crossing, the applicant should conduct fieldwork during either the a.m. or p.m. peak hour to determine the total peak hour delay reduced by the project. Applicants can also add together intersection delay reduced and railroad delay reduced, if they both will be improved by the project.

The applicant should include the appropriate Synchro or HCM ~~full~~-reports (including the Timing Page Report) that support the improvement in total peak hour delay and should conduct the analysis using the following:

- Under the network settings, all defaults should be used for lanes, volumes, phases and simulation
- Use Synchro’s automatic optimization to determine cycle, offset and splits (for traffic signals)
- Project improvements assumed in the build condition should be reflected in the total project cost, such as additional through or turn lanes and protective left-turn phasing
- Roadway lengths for intersection approaches must be the same length for before and after scenarios
- An average weekday should be used for the existing conditions instead of a weekend, peak holiday, or special event time period that is not representative of the corridor for most of the year

Total Peak Hour Delay Reduced (Seconds) = Total Peak Hour Delay Per Vehicle x Vehicles Per Hour

RESPONSE (Calculation):

- Total Peak Hour Delay/Vehicle without the Project (Seconds/Vehicle): _____
- Total Peak Hour Delay/Vehicle with the Project (Seconds/Vehicle): _____
- Total Peak Hour Delay/Vehicle Reduced by the Project (Seconds/Vehicle): _____
- Volume (Vehicles Per Hour): _____
- Total Peak Hour Delay Reduced by the Project (Seconds): _____
- EXPLANATION of methodology used to calculate railroad crossing delay, if applicable, or date of last signal retiming for signalized corridors (Limit 1,400 characters; approximately 200 words):

SCORING GUIDANCE (100 Points)

The applicant with the most peak hour vehicle delay reduced by the project improvement will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the points. For example, if the application being scored reduced delay by 5,000 seconds and the top project reduced delay by 25,000 seconds, this applicant would receive $(5,000/25,000)*100$ points, or 20 points. If expanding thru lanes or building a new interchange on an existing signalized corridor, signal retiming must be completed in the five-year time period before the project was submitted for funding (i.e., completed a signal retiming between 2013 and 2018), consistent with regional policy in the 2040 Transportation Policy Plan. If the date of the signal retiming is more than five years past, then the project will be disqualified as part of the qualifications review of the projects. Applicants will provide that date as part of the explanation for this measure.

- B. MEASURE: Using the Synchro or HCM analysis completed in the previous measure, identify the total peak hour emissions reduction in kilograms (CO, NO_x, VOC) due to the project. The applicant should include the appropriate Synchro or HCM reports (including the Timing Page Report) that support the improvement in total peak hour emissions. If more than one intersection is examined, then the emissions reduced by each intersection can be added together to determine the total emissions reduced by the project.

Roadway projects that do not include new roadway segments or railroad grade-separation elements:

- Total Peak Hour Emissions Reduced (Kilograms)= Total Peak Hour Emissions without the project – Total Peak Hour Emissions with the Project ~~Reduced Per Vehicle x Vehicles Per Hour~~

RESPONSE (Calculation):

- Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions ~~/Vehicle~~ without the Project (Kilograms): _____
- Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions ~~/Vehicle~~ with the Project (Kilograms): _____
- Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions Reduced ~~/Vehicle~~ by the Project (Kilograms): _____
- ~~Volume (Vehicles Per Hour): _____~~
- ~~Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions Reduced by the Project (Kilograms): _____~~

If more than one intersection is examined, the response ~~is~~ should include a total of all emissions reduced.

Roadway projects that are constructing new roadway segments, but do not include railroad grade-separation elements:

- For new roadways, identify the key intersection(s) on any parallel roadway(s) that will experience reduced emissions as a result of traffic diverting to the new roadway (using Synchro). If more than one intersection is examined, then the emissions reduced by each intersection can be added together.

However, new roadways will also generate new emissions compared to existing conditions as traffic diverts from the parallel roadways. The applicant needs to estimate four variables to determine the new emissions generated once the project is completed on any major intersections. Those variables include: speed, vehicle mile traveled, delay, and total vehicle stops. The applicant needs to detail any assumptions used for conditions after the project is built. The variables will be used in the exact same equation used Synchro required of the other project types.

The equation below should only be used to estimate the new emissions generated by new roadways.

Parallel Roadways

Enter data for Parallel Roadways.

- Total Peak Hour Emissions Reduced (Kilograms) = Total Peak Hour ~~Emissions Reduced Per Vehicle x Vehicles Per Hour~~ without the project – Total Peak Hour Emissions with the Project

RESPONSE (Data Input and Calculation):

- Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions ~~Per Vehicle~~ without the Project (Kilograms): _____ (Applicant inputs number)
- Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions ~~Per Vehicle~~ with the Project (Kilograms): _____ (Applicant inputs number)
- Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions Reduced ~~Per Vehicle~~ by the Project (Kilograms): _____ (Online Calculation)
- ~~Volume (Vehicles Per Hour): _____ (Applicant inputs number)~~
- ~~Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions Reduced by the Project (Kilograms): _____ (Online Calculation)~~

If more than one intersection is examined, the response is a total of all emissions reduced.

Emissions Reduced on Parallel Roadways _____ (Online Calculation)

New Roadway Portion

- Cruise speed in miles per hour with the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)
- Vehicle miles traveled with the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)
- Total delay in hours with the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)
- Total stops in vehicles per hour with the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)
- Fuel consumption in gallons: _____
- Total (CO, NOX, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions Reduced or Produced on New Roadway (Kilograms): _____
- EXPLANATION of methodology and assumptions used:(Limit 1,400 characters; approximately 200 words)
- Total (CO, NOX, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions Reduced by the Project (Kilograms):

Speed = cruise speed in miles per hour

Total Travel = vehicle miles traveled

Total Delay = total delay in hours

Stops = total stops in vehicles per hour

$K4 = 0.075283 - 0.0015892 * Speed + 0.000015066 * Speed^2$

$K2 = 0.7329$

$K5 = 0.0000061411 * Speed^2$

F2 = Fuel consumption in gallons

$CO = F2 * 0.0699 \text{ kg/gallon}$

$NO_x = F2 * 0.0136 \text{ kg/gallon}$

$VOC = F2 * 0.0162 \text{ kg/gallon}$

Total = Total Peak Hour Emissions reduced on Parallel Roadways – (CO + NOx + VOC)

Roadway projects that include railroad grade-separation elements:

- For roadway projects that include a railroad crossing, the applicant needs to input four variables before and after the project to determine the change in emissions. Those variables include: speed, vehicle mile traveled, delay, and total vehicle stops. The applicant needs to conduct fieldwork during either the a.m. or p.m. peak hour to determine the existing conditions and then detail any assumptions used for conditions after the project is built. The variables will be used in the exact same equation used within the software program (i.e., Synchro) required of the other project types. Therefore, the approach to calculate the kilograms emissions reduced for railroad grade-separation projects will be comparable to intersection improvement projects.

RESPONSE (Calculation):

- Cruise speed in miles per hour without the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)
- Vehicle miles traveled without the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)

Roadway Expansion

- Total delay in hours without the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)
- Total stops in vehicles per hour without the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)

- Cruise speed in miles per hour with the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)
- Vehicle miles traveled with the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)
- Total delay in hours with the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)
- Total stops in vehicles per hour with the project: _____ (Applicant inputs number)
- Fuel consumption in gallons (F1)
- Fuel consumption in gallons (F2)
- Fuel consumption in gallons (F3)
- Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions Reduced by the Project (Kilograms):
- EXPLANATION of methodology and assumptions used:(Limit 1,400 characters; approximately 200 words)

Speed = cruise speed in miles per hour

Total Travel = vehicle miles traveled

Total Delay = total delay in hours

Stops = total stops in vehicles per hour

$$K1 = 0.075283 - 0.0015892 * Speed + 0.000015066 * Speed^2$$

$$K2 = 0.7329$$

$$K3 = 0.0000061411 * Speed^2$$

F1 (or F2 – without the project) = Fuel consumption in gallons

$$F1 = Total Travel * k1 + Total Delay * k2 + Stops * k3$$

$$F2 = Total Travel * k1 + Total Delay * k2 + Stops * k3$$

$$F3 = F1 - F2$$

$$CO = F3 * 0.0699 \text{ kg/gallon}$$

$$NO_x = F3 * 0.0136 \text{ kg/gallon}$$

$$VOC = F3 * 0.0162 \text{ kg/gallon}$$

Equation Automatically Provides Emissions Reduced:

- Total (CO, NO_x, and VOC) Peak Hour Emissions Reduced by the Project (Kilograms):
_____ (Online Calculation)
- EXPLANATION of methodology and assumptions used (Limit 1,400 characters; approximately 200 words):

SCORING GUIDANCE (50 Points)

The applicant with the most kilograms reduced by the project improvement will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full. For example, if the

Roadway Expansion

application being scored reduced emissions by 3 kilograms and the top project reduced emissions by 5 kilograms, this applicant would receive $(3/5)*50$ points or 30 points.

6. Safety (150 Points) – This criterion addresses the project’s ability to correct deficiencies and improve the overall safety of an existing or future roadway facility. It will assess the project’s monetized safety benefits.

A. MEASURE: Respond as appropriate to one of the two project types below.

Calculate the reduction in the total number of crashes due to improvements on the A-Minor Arterial or Non-Freeway Principal Arterial made by the project. The applicant must base the estimate of crash reduction on the methodology consistent with the latest Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) application. Applicants should focus on the crash analysis for reactive projects ~~starting on page 7 through page 11, in addition to Appendix A, E, and F.~~

Crash data must be obtained for the project length using the MnDOT TIS system average for calendar years ~~2013-2015~~ through ~~2015~~2017. Crash data should include all crash types and severity, including pedestrian and bicycle crashes.

Applicants should request crash data from MnDOT as early as possible. The applicant must then attach a listing of the crashes reduced and the HSIP Benefit/Cost (B/C) worksheet that identifies the resulting benefit associated with the project. As part of the response, please detail and attach the crash modification factor(s) used from FHWA’s Crash Modification Factors Clearinghouse: <http://www.cmfclearinghouse.org/>. This measure requests the monetized safety benefit of the project. The cost of the project is scored in the Cost Effectiveness criterion.

New Roadways:

1. For new roadways, identify the parallel roadway(s) from which traffic will be diverted to the new roadway.
2. Using the crash data for 2013-2015, calculate the existing crash rate for the parallel roadway(s) identified in Step 1.
3. Identify the daily traffic volume that will be relocated from the parallel roadway(s) to the new roadway.
4. Calculate the number of crashes on the parallel roadway(s) using the existing crash rate from Step 2 and the relocated traffic volume to determine the change in number of crashes due to the relocated traffic volume. For instance, if 5,000 vehicles are expected to relocate from the existing parallel roadway to the new roadway, calculate the number of crashes related to the 5,000 vehicles.
5. Identify the average crash rate for the new roadway using MnDOT’s average crash rates by roadway type. Using the average crash rate for the new roadway, calculate the number of crashes related to the relocated traffic (i.e., the 5,000 vehicles).
6. Calculate the crash reduction factor using the existing number of crashes on the existing parallel roadway (Step 4) compared to the estimated crashes calculated for the new roadway (Step 5), due to the relocated traffic volume (i.e., the 5,000 vehicles).

7. The calculated crash reduction factor should be used in the HSIP B/C worksheet.
8. Upload additional documentation materials into the “Other Attachments” Form in the online application.

RESPONSE (Calculation):

- Crash Modification Factor Used (Limit 700 characters; approximately 100 words): _____
- Rationale for Crash Modifications Selected (Limit 1,400 characters; approximately 200 words): _____
- Project Benefit (\$) from B/C ratio: _____
- Explanation of Methodology: _____

Roadway projects that include railroad grade-separation elements:

Since the number of observed crashes at an existing at-grade railroad crossing is minor compared to an intersection, this measure will assess crash risk exposure that exists in order to compare projects. As a proactive safety measure, railroad grade-separation projects eliminate the crash risk exposure.

- Crash Risk Exposure Eliminated = current average annual daily traffic volume x average number of daily trains at the at-grade crossing

RESPONSE (Calculation):

- Current AADT volume: _____
- Average daily trains: _____
- Crash Risk Exposure eliminated: _____

SCORING GUIDANCE (150 Points)

This measure will be considered separately for projects that do and do not include a railroad grade-separation project. As a result, two projects (one project without a railroad grade-separation project and one with a railroad grade-separation project) may receive the full points.

For projects that do not include a grade-separation project, the applicant with the highest dollar value of benefits will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had safety benefits of \$11,000,000 and the top project had safety benefits of \$16,000,000, this applicant would receive $(11,000,000/16,000,000)*150$ points or 103 points.

For railroad grade-separation projects, the applicant with the highest crash risk exposure eliminated due to the project will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored reduced 11,000 exposures and the top project reduced 16,000 exposures this applicant would receive $(11,000/16,000)*150$ points or 103 points.

7. Multimodal Elements and Existing Connections (100 Points) – This criterion measures how the project improves the travel experience, safety, and security for other modes of transportation and addresses the safe integration of these modes. The *Transportation Policy Plan* requires that explicit consideration of all users of the transportation system be considered in the planning and scoping phase of roadway projects.

- A. ***MEASURE:*** Discuss any bicycle, pedestrian, or transit elements that are included as part of the project and how they improve the travel experience, safety, and security for users of these modes. Applicants should make sure that new multimodal elements described in the response are accounted for as part of the cost estimate form earlier in the application. Applicants may want to reference how the proposed multimodal improvements positively affect identified alignments in the Regional Bicycle Transportation Network (RBTN), if applicable.

Also, describe the existing bicycle, pedestrian, and transit connections. Furthermore, address how the proposed project safely integrates all modes of transportation (i.e., vehicles, bicyclists, transit, and pedestrians) and, if applicable, supports planned transitway stations. Applicants should note if there is no transit service in the project area and identify supporting studies or plans that address why a mode may not be incorporated in the project (e.g., a bicycle system plan that locates bikeway facilities on a lower-volume parallel route).

RESPONSE (Limit 2, 800 characters; approximately 400 words):

SCORING GUIDANCE (100 Points)

The project with the most comprehensive multimodal elements included as part of the project will receive the full points. Remaining projects will receive a share of the full points at the scorer's discretion. The project score will be based on the quality of the improvements, as opposed to being based solely on the number of modes addressed.

Scorers should make sure that new multimodal elements described in the response are accounted for on the cost estimate form earlier in the application.

8. Risk Assessment (75 Points) – This criterion measures the number of risks associated with successfully building the project, ~~and the steps already completed in the project development process~~. These steps are outlined in the checklist in the required Risk Assessment.

- A. MEASURE: Applications involving construction must complete the Risk Assessment. This checklist includes activities completed to-date, as well as an assessment of risks (e.g., right-of-way acquisition, proximity to historic properties, etc.).

If the applicant is completing a transit or TDM application that is operations only, check the box and do not complete the remainder of the form. These projects will receive full points for the Risk Assessment.

Park-and-Ride and other transit construction projects require completion of the Risk Assessment below.

RESPONSE (Complete Risk Assessment):

SCORING GUIDANCE (75 Points)

The applicant with the most points on the Risk Assessment (more points equate to less project risk) will receive the full points for the measure. Remaining projects will receive a proportionate share of the full points. For example, if the application being scored had 40 points and the top project had 70 points, this applicant would receive $(40/70)*75$ points or 43 points.

9. Cost Effectiveness (100 Points) – This criterion will assess the project’s cost effectiveness based on the total TAB-eligible project cost (not including noise walls) and total points awarded in the previous 8 criteria.

A. MEASURE: This measure will calculate the cost effectiveness of the project. Metropolitan Council staff will divide the number of points awarded in the previous criteria by the TAB-eligible project cost (not including noise walls) ~~by the total number of points awarded in the previous criteria.~~

- Cost effectiveness = ~~total TAB-eligible project cost (not including noise walls)~~/total number of points awarded in previous criteria/total TAB-eligible project cost (not including noise walls)

RESPONSE (This measure will be calculated after the scores for the other measures are tabulated by the Scoring Committee):

- Total Project Cost (entered in Project Cost Form): _____

TOTAL: 1,100 POINTS

Risk Assessment

Please check those that apply and fill in anticipated completion dates for all projects, except for new/expanded transit service projects, transit vehicle purchases, or travel demand management (TDM) projects.

1) ~~Project Scope~~Funding (5-20 Percent of Points)

- 100% ~~Meetings or contacts with stakeholders have occurred~~ All funding sources are identified and/or are local sources (the Regional Solicitation award is the gap funding/remaining funding needed to implement the project); applicants may still pursue other funding sources after the project award to reduce the local contribution.
- 40% ~~Stakeholders have been identified~~
- 0% The applicant is promising to cover the entire local match, but it is necessary for them to seek other sources (e.g., state bonding or various state/federal competitive grants) or funding partners to be able to successfully deliver the project (i.e., the local agency does not have the entire local match committed at this time) ~~Stakeholders have not been identified or contacted~~

~~2) Layout or Preliminary Plan (5 Percent of Points)~~

- 100% Layout or Preliminary Plan completed
- 50% Layout or Preliminary Plan started
- 0% Layout or Preliminary Plan has not been started

Anticipated date or date of completion: _____

~~3) Environmental Documentation (5 Percent of Points)~~

- EIS EA PM

Document Status:

- 100% Document approved (include copy of signed cover sheet)
- 75% Document submitted to State Aid for review (date submitted: _____)
- 50% Document in progress; environmental impacts identified; review request letters sent
- 0% Document not started

Anticipated date or date of completion/approval: _____

4) ~~2) Review of Section 106 Historic Resources (10-20 Percent of Points)~~

- 100% No known historic properties eligible for or listed in the National Register of Historic Places are located in the project area, and project is not located on an identified historic bridge
- 100% There are historical/archeological properties present, but determination of "no historic properties affected" is anticipated.
- 80% Historic/archeological ~~review under way~~ property impacted; determination of "~~no historic properties affected~~" or "no adverse effect" anticipated
- 40% Historic/archeological ~~review under way~~ property impacted; determination of "adverse effect" anticipated

0% Unsure if there are any historic/archaeological ~~resources~~ properties in the project area.

~~Anticipated date or date of completion of historic/archeological review: _____~~

Project is located on an identified historic bridge:

5)3) _____ Review of Section 4f/6f Resources (10-20 Percent of Points)

4(f) – Does the project impacts any public parks, public wildlife refuges, public golf courses, wild & scenic rivers or public private historic properties?

6(f) – Does the project impact any public parks, public wildlife refuges, public golf courses, wild & scenic rivers or historic property that was purchased or improved with federal funds?

100% No Section 4f/6f ~~resources~~ property located in or adjacent to the project

100% Impact to 4(f) property. The project is an Independent Bikeway/Walkway project covered by the bikeway/walkway Negative Declaration statement. Letter of support received (potential option for bicycle and pedestrian facility applications only)

~~80~~70% Section 4f resources present within the project area, but ~~no adverse effects~~ impacts are minor and they do not adversely affect the activities, features, or attributes of the 4(f) property.

50% ~~Project impacts to~~ Section 4f/6f resources likely present within project area; 4(f) evaluation required. – ~~C~~oordination/documentation has begun

30% ~~Project impacts to~~ Section 4f/6f present within project area; 4(f) evaluation required. Coordination/documentation has not begun ~~resources likely – coordination/documentation has not begun~~

0% Unsure if there are any impacts to Section 4f/6f resources in the project area

6)4) _____ Right-of-Way (15-20 Percent of Points)

100% Right-of-way, permanent or temporary easements not required

100% Right-of-way, permanent or temporary easements has/have been acquired

75% Right-of-way, permanent or temporary easements required, offers made

50% Right-of-way, permanent or temporary easements required, appraisals made

25% Right-of-way, permanent or temporary easements required, parcels identified

0% Right-of-way, permanent or temporary easements required, parcels not identified

0% Right-of-way, permanent or temporary easements identification has not been completed

~~Anticipated date or date of acquisition _____~~

7)5) _____ Railroad Involvement (25-20 Percent of Points)

100% No railroad involvement on project

100% Railroad Right-of-Way Agreement is executed (include signature page)

60% Railroad Right-of-Way Agreement required; Agreement has been initiated

40% Railroad Right-of-Way Agreement required; negotiations have begun

20% Railroad Right-of-Way Agreement required; railroad has been contacted

0% Railroad Right-of-Way Agreement required; ~~negotiations not begun~~ railroad has not been contacted.

Anticipated date or date of executed Agreement _____

8) Interchange Approval (15 Percent of Points)*

- 100% Project does not involve construction of a new/expanded interchange or new interchange ramps
- 100% Interchange project has been approved by the Metropolitan Council/MnDOT Highway Interchange Request Committee
- 0% Interchange project has not been approved by the Metropolitan Council/MnDOT Highway Interchange Request Committee

*Please contact Karen Scheffing at MnDOT (Karen.Scheffing@state.mn.us or 651-234-7784) to determine if your project needs to go through the Metropolitan Council/MnDOT Highway Interchange Request Committee.

9) Construction Documents/Plan (10 Percent of Points)

- 100% Construction plans completed/approved (include signed title sheet)
- 75% Construction plans submitted to State Aid for review
- 50% Construction plans in progress; at least 30% completion
- 0% Construction plans have not been started

Anticipated date or date of completion: _____

10) Letting

Anticipated Letting Date: _____